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MBREE

Year ended 31st December

BE+t-A=+—HLEE

Turnover EE ]
Profit before taxation BRECAT A
Taxation A
Profit after taxation BRER R A
Minority interests DR ER
Profit attributable to

shareholders TR SR B G A
Earnings per share BRER

— Basic —&ERK

— Diluted %3

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED 44 £ & % @ 47 &2 4]

2001 2000 1999
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FHT THL
1,170,871 1,198,378 1,328,513
215,880 240,383 475,332
(90,891) (86,195) (162,857)
124,989 154,188 312,475
(4,024) 6,676 (23,564)
120,965 160,864 288,911

HK12 cents il HK16 cents J&fll  HK29 cents il
HK12 cents 7l HK16 cents J&fll  HK28 cents il




Financial Highlights 5
MHBE

Breakdowns of property sales and landbank (inclusive of Regal Riviera in Guangzhou) for the year under review:

REEFE  HEMER L HFHEE (BREMNKITHR) 200 -

Sales Area Breakdown by Projects Sales Value Breakdown by Projects

SHEmR (BEEED HER (REE)

I Guangzhou * Regal Court I Guangzhou ® Regal Court
[ENM o TS5 6.1 o [EM o R
I Guangzhou ® Gallopade Park-South Court 1 I CGuangzhou * Gallopade Park-South Court
JEM o BESRTEE — s 8 BN e BRIEE -k
B Guangzhou - Huanan New City B CGuangzhou ® Huanan New City
JEM o ERATK B o AT
I Guangzhou * Pleasant View Garden SCF Il Guangzhou * Pleasant View Garden
B e BRRE B e RRRE
I Guangzhou ® Fairview South Court B CGuangzhou e Fairview South Court
M o REsE B e mEmE
I Guangzhou ® Huajing New City Il Cuangzhou * Huajing New City
BN o BRI B o ESHH
Il Cuangzhou ¢ Regal Riviera Il Cuangzhou ¢ Regal Riviera
B o FIBR ° B o TIHR
I Beijing * Fresh Life Garden I Beiing ¢ Fresh Life Garden
bR e WIKNRE IR e WIHMRE
I Others I Others
Htty Total #2851 : 480,004 sq.m. F 75K Hity Total #5t+ + HK$2,338 million B &&TT

Landbank Breakdown by Districts Landbank Breakdown by Usage

T iR (R ERT) + #a iR (R AR

I  Guangzhou I Residential
B =
Bl Beiing B Carpark
Bl FE5
B Tianjin Bl Retail
R 8% TE 8%
Bl Shanghai B Others
i V At
Total #85T : 5,939,083 sq.m. FJ7K
Turnover Profit attributable to shareholders Shareholders’ equity
S IR R PEAL 2 R IRER S
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT BHEET BEET
2,500 - 300~ 3,000 -
2,000 250 2,500
1 500 200 2,000
150 1,500
1,000
100 1,000
500 50 500
0 0 0

02 01 00 99
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“Continued success will be secured through vital
expansion into major cities, so as to benefit most
from further growth in business activities, better
economy of scale, efficient sharing of resources
and wider brand name recognition......”

[ %@/Pﬁ&f%ﬁ@ mREEHRE - M EBEREHE
= ;@%f w  BIRAZE M A g2

It is my pleasure to present to our shareholders the annual results
of Hopson Development Holdings Limited (“Hopson” or the
“Company”) for the year ended 31st December 2002.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

During the year under review, the Company together with its
subsidiaries (collectively known as the “Group”) achieved
encouraging results against the background of a challenging
market. The Group recorded a profit attributable to shareholders
of HK$229,082,000, 89% higher than 2001. Earnings per share
were HK23 cents.

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors has recommended payment of a final
dividend of HK2 cents per share for the year ended 31st
December 2002. Combined with the interim dividend of HK2
cents per share, this will bring the total dividend distribution for
the year to HK4 cents per share.

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED 44 £ & % @ 47 &2 4]
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Guangzhou ¢ Huanan New City

BEM o R

MARKET OVERVIEW

The economic conditions in the global market faced significant
uncertainties and the world economy, as a result, slowed down
in 2002. However, the fundamentals of China’s economy
remained strong with a national GDP growth of about 8%
recorded during the year. Also, China’s entry to the WTO coupled
with its upcoming hosting of the 2008 Olympics and the 2010
World Expo, should have a positive impact on the property

activities.

Favourable economic factors including the rising disposable
income and the positive monetary environments have helped
activate the desire of home buying. The regulatory land supply
system implemented across the nation facilitates the
improvement of market efficiency and the ease of oversupply
situation. The property market in China is highly fragmented and
competitive. Only large-scale property developers with solid track
records, established brand names and quality products and

services can stand out in the market and out-rival competitors.

Chairman’s Statement

EFE®/E

Guangzhou ¢ Fairview South Court
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Chairman’s Statement

ETEHE

First-tier cities have larger population, more influential economies
and higher income per capita. All these help stimulate stronger
buying power. In addition, robust pace of urbanisation, expansion
of middle-class as well as the growing demand for quality
products and services in urban living are all essential factors
attributable to the popularity of well-planned projects in these
cities. With the valuable knowledge and experience accumulated
from its established business model in Guangzhou, the Group
possesses what it takes to excel in those major cities. In 2002,
it successfully transplanted its niches and secured a firm foothold
in Beijing. The market responses from the first lot of projects are

encouraging.

PROSPECTS

China’s strong economic growth and the influx of foreign
investments should be able to propel housing expenditures and
the powerful upgrading trend. The Group is now well positioned
to realise its strategic cross-district expansion. It is expected
that continued success will be secured through vital expansion
into major cities, so as to benefit most from further growth in
business activities, better economy of scale, efficient sharing of
resources and wider brand name recognition.

Following on the solid base of success achieved in Guangzhou,
the Group intends to seek opportunities by strategically
expanding its property business in other promising markets.
Hopson will, as before, continue to focus on quality residential
developments and immaculate service standards. Looking
ahead, Guangzhou, Beijing and Shanghai will be the major
contributors to the Group’s profit in the coming years.

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED 44 £ & % @ 47 &2 4]
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Finally, | would like to take this opportunity to express my heartfelt
gratitude, on behalf of the Board, to our dedicated staff, visionary
management and supportive business partners. The Group
would not be the same without their unrelenting efforts and

contributions.

Chu Mang Yee

Chairman

Hong Kong, 14th April 2003

Chairman’s Statement
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“Notwithstanding that property market in China is
highly competitive, the Group achieved
impressive milestones and overwhelmingly
success in GFA sales

[1& & AP B 5 1t 2 T A s AR
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With the concerted efforts of our management team and
dedicated staff, the Group achieved historical milestone in 2002.
While property sales in Guangzhou pitched an unprecedented
record, the Group also signified its cross-district expansion by
successfully launching first lot of projects in Beijing. In 2002, the
Group experienced the highest GFA under construction, the
highest GFA completed as well as the highest GFA sold.

OPERATING ENVIRONMENTS

In 2002, the rapid pace of economic growth, accelerated
urbanisation progress and increase in residents’ disposable
income, all were key drivers to activate further activities to
property market in China. Throughout the year, the real estate
investments for the nation already reached RMB600 billion,
representing an increase of over 30% from the year before. This
reflected the considerable optimism prevailing in the market.

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED 44 £ & % @ 47 &2 4]
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With the surging demand, major cities in China exhibited
encouraging sales growths. The Pearl River Delta region, Beijing-
Tianjin region and Yangtze River Delta region remained the
backbones of China’s property market. For the head cities of
these three regions, namely, Guangzhou, Beijing and Shanghai,
the total sales of residential GFA amounted to 7.96 million sg.m.,
16.04 million sg.m. and 18.39 million sg.m. respectively.

Guangzhou

Guangzhou, as the home base of the Group’s development for
the past decade, remains to be an outright important market.
The city continued to surpass the national GDP and achieved a
13% GDP growth in 2002. The sales of commodity property
recorded a steady increase of 15% in 2002, with the secondary
market showing an even more encouraging 29% increase.

With the opening of new Metro Line of the city by end 2002, the
infrastructure development continued to be in impressive
progress. The expansion of Guangzhou city and the development
of Nansha will further promote the geographical growth of
Guangzhou'’s property market in the coming decade.

Managing Director’s Report
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Managing Director’s Report
EEARERSE

Beijing

While still enjoying a high degree of political influence, Beijing
proves to be a phenomenal market. Its robust GDP was kept at
10% growth in 2002. It is also envisaged that China’s hosting of
the 2008 Olympic Games should bring multiple advantages to
Beijing for many years. The government has earmarked a huge
investment program for the upgrading of infrastructure and other
facilities. The development of suburban properties will be fostered
by virtue of the completion of light rails and extension of metro
line.

Against a backdrop of positive market sentiment, real estate
investments experienced a 26% rise in 2002. This represented
about 55% in overall investment amount in Beijing for the year.

The property market in Beijing is lucrative yet competitive.

Shanghai

Being the largest city and most sophisticated commercial centre
of mainland China, Shanghai is well backed by influx of domestic
as well as foreign investments. Under the Tenth Five-Year Plan
(2001 - 2005), the government expects Shanghai’s GDP growth
to be sustained at 9% to 11% per annum. In 2002, Shanghai
maintained a 10% GDP growth and remained as one of the
country’s fastest and most promising cities.

Shanghai property market is poised to grow alongside with the
city’s development. The impetus of hosting 2010 World Expo
and the city’s aggressive infrastructure improvement programs
have induced a proactive investment environment. In 2002, the
real estate investments recorded a 14% increase, whereas the
completed floor space and sales achieved increases of 11%
and 9% to historic height.

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED 44 £ & % @ 47 &2 4]
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GROUP’S SALES PERFORMANCE

In 2002, the Group continued to demonstrate its proven sales
ability and the prominent marketing team. Notwithstanding that
property market in China is highly competitive, the Group
achieved impressive milestones and overwhelmingly success in
GFA sales. In 2002, for projects in Guangzhou such as Gallopade
Park-South Court, Huanan New City, Pleasant View Garden,
Fairview South Court, Huajing New City Phase 6 together with
Regal Riviera, the Group successfully sold a total of 3,710
residential units, representing a GFA of approximately 449,754
sg.m. in aggregate. The outstanding business performance in
Guangzhou in fact laid a solid foundation for the Group’s cross-

district expansion.

For projects in Beijing, the Group witnessed encouraging market
responses and sold 232 flats in Fresh Life Garden, or a GFA of
30,250 sg.m. in 2002. The Group commenced sales in Beijing
in later part of the year and successfully differentiated itself in

terms of brandname, integrated quality of products and services.

A total sales of 480,004 sg.m. was achieved last year which is

the historic record of the Group’s development history.

In 2002, the Group was recognised as the “Top Ten Listed
Developer in China”, and Huanan New City project also earned

the distinction as one of the “Top Famous Projects in China”.

PROJECT DEVELOPMENT PROGRESS

During the year under review, the Group’s projects progressed
in accordance with or even ahead of planned schedule. First
Phases of Huanan New City, Pleasant View Garden, Regal
Riviera, Fairview Garden South Court and Huajing New City
Phase 6C were in occupancy during the year. The total GFA
completed during the year totaled to approximately 1.08 million
sg.m., which is again a historic record.

As at the end of the year, the Group had approximately 1.86
million sg.m. of GFA under construction in Guangzhou and
Beijing, reflecting the Group’s rapidly expanded business volume.

Managing Director’s Report
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Managing Director’s Report
ESHAKERE

LANDBANK REPLENISHMENT

In January 2002, the Group moved forward with its cross-district
expansion by securing four new sites in Beijing and Tianjin, and
all such sites have been under active development stages. In
September, 2002 and February 2003, the Group announced
further acquisition of two new sites in Shanghai to realise its full-
fledge expansion into this important city. The Group is currently
a mainland property developer with one of the largest landbank
reserves.

As at 31st December 2002, the Group’s quality landbank was
kept at approximately 5.9 million sq.m. which is strategically
located in major cities and sufficient for the Group’s business
growth over the next 6 years.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

With China’s strong economic fundamentals, the market
optimism and hence the enlarged scale of real estate investments
are expected to extend in the coming years. According to
guidelines set by the Tenth Five-Year Plan, the national average
floor space per capita should reach 22 sg.m. by the year 2005,
which compares to 2001 figure of 11 sg.m. in urban areas. This
undoubtedly allows much room for the property developments
to grow, particularly in the residential sector. On the other hand,
some deficiencies are noted in the market, such as structural
mismatch of supply-demand sides and the overheating
phenomenon on certain market segments. Industry participants
have to carefully choose their business strategies in the

increasingly competitive market.

Renowned for its expertise and professionalism, the Group
focuses on accumulating quality landbank for projects in major
cities. By maximising the sharing of resources and maintaining
operational efficiency, the Group is confident of generating equal
success in other markets as it did in Guangzhou. While
Guangzhou remains to be one of the major profit contributors,
an increasingly larger portion of incomes from projects outside
Guangzhou, including Beijing, Shanghai and Tianijin, is anticipated

in the coming future.

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED 44 £ & % @ 47 &2 4]
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The Group looks forward to strategic business expansion along
side with the flourishing China economy, the bourgeoning
property market and the huge potential demand for improving
standards of living. The Group has already successfully
implemented its cross-district expansion in accordance with its
strategic plan. And it is believed that some of the regional markets
are still largely untapped. Eyeing the encouraging market
responses in both new and existing markets, the Group will not
hold back from any opportunity to explore other potential and
emerging markets.

With well-established brand, focused and compelling business
direction, uncompromising standards of products and services,
a top-notch professional team and the efficient operational
system, the Group should hold the winning keys to achieving
sustained success for its business expansions.

Tse Sai Tung, Stones
Managing Director and CEO

Hong Kong, 14th April 2003

Managing Director’s Report
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Property Locations
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Investment Property Factsheet

REW=—

EX

Details of the investment properties of the Group as at 31st

R-ZEE-F+-_A=+—H1F £EEEY

December 2002 are as follows: HKEFHAT
Approximate

Group’s interest Existing use gross floor area
Location E SEAEER BRIAE BAREEERR
Phases 5A, 6A, 6B and 6C FEAEEREEMKTR 90% Commercial, retailand 109,188 square metres
Huajing New City L ARE 1055, carparking 109,188 77k
105 Zhongshan Avenue ESIWEOA wx - TEREES
Tianhe District 6A + 6BJZ6CH
Guangzhou
Guangdong Province
Mainland China
Phase 2, Jinan Garden hEIRFEERE BN 90% Commercial, retail and 13,161 square metres
South side of Zhongshan Avenue RABFRILAEHHE carparking 13,161 7K

Tianhe District
Guangzhou
Guangdong Province
Mainland China

Phases 1,2 and 3
Fairview Garden

238 Xingang West Road
Haizhu District
Guangzhou

Guangdong Province
Mainland China

Phases 1,2 and 3

Gallopade Park

South side of Zhongshan Avenue
Tianhe District

Guangzhou

Guangdong Province

Mainland China

Phases 1 and 2, Regal Court
East side of Longkou West Road
Tianhe District

Guangzhou

Guangdong Province

Mainland China

Phase 1, Gallopade Park-South Court

South side of Zhongshan Avenue
Tianhe District

Guangzhou

Guangdong Province

Mainland China

Phase 1, Fairview South Court
212 Xingang West Road
Haizhu District

Guangzhou

Guangdong Province
Mainland China

Phase 1, Huanan New City

168 Nam Da Road Panyu District
Guangzhou

Guangdong Province

Mainland China

ZHEE "

B AR ERA EMN 90%
TEIRE 7 PR 2388
WEHEE— K=

HEAREERE M 95%
RARPIABEEE
BREEEE— —R=H

B AR ERA EN 100%
XIREOTERER
FRHE-RZH

PEAREERE R 95%
RARFIAEEE
SSE—miEE 1

B AR ERA EMN 70%
ERERETRE21257
WREAEE—H

B ARE A E M 60%
EEEEAKI68H
ERFPE 8

% TEREES

Commercial, retail,
clubhouse and carparking
HE TE gMREES

Commercial, retail,
clubhouse and carparking
HE TE gMREES

Commercial, retail,
clubhouse and carparking
HE TE gMREES

Commercial, retai,
clubhouse and carparking

A% TE §REES

Commercial, retail and
carparking
HE  TEREES

Commercial, retai,
clubhouse and carparking

BE T SMREES

28,926 square metres
28,926 73k

18,796 square metres
18,796 Ak

46,722 square metres
46,722 J5K

19,350 square metres
19,350 77K

2,805 square metres
2,805F 73K

133,843 square metres
133,843 77K
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Executive Directors

CHU Mang Yee, aged 43, is the Chairman of the Company. Mr.
Chu and Mr. Cheung Fong Wing are the founders of the Group.
Mr. Chu has over 19 years’ experience in trading, construction,
property investment and development. He is also a member of
the China People’s Political Liaison Committee, an Honoured
Citizen of Meizhou, Guangdong Province and the Vice Chairman
of Guangdong Research Institute for The Development of
Corporate Strategy. Mr. Chu is the sole director of Sounda
Properties Limited which has an interest in the share capital of
the Company as disclosed under the provisions of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

TSE Sai Tung, Stones, aged 45, is the Managing Director and
CEO of the Company. Mr. Tse was an executive director of a
publicly listed property development company before joining the
Group in December 1996. He holds a Bachelor’s degree in
Engineering from the University of Hong Kong and a Master’s
degree in Business Administration from the University of Warwick,
UK., and is a member of the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers
and the Chartered Institute of Building, U.K.. He has over 21
years’ experience in real estate investment, property
development, project management, sales and marketing and is
also Vice President of Guangdong Real Estate Association and
Guangzhou Real Estate Association.

AU YEUNG Fu, Anthony, aged 68, is the Deputy Chairman
and Finance Director of the Company. Mr. Au Yeung is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Society of Accountants and the
Australian CPA, and has extensive experience in the fields of
accounting, management, strategic planning and taxation. Prior
to joining the Group in 1997, he had been the Commissioner of
Inland Revenue with the Hong Kong Government for 11 years.

Directors’ Profile
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Directors’ Profile

EEEN

XIANG Bin, aged 56, is the Deputy Chairman of the Company.
He was on the senior management of a public listed company
before joining the Group in February 2001. He has over 35 years’

experience in construction and administration management.

AU Wai Kin, aged 48, joined the Group in 1995. Mr. Au
graduated from Zhongshan University, Guangzhou, and has over
20 years’ experience in building construction, town planning,

real estate investment and property development.

CHEUNG Fong Wing, aged 66, joined the Group in 1992. Mr.
Cheung has many years’ experience in the fields of catering,
real estate investment, property development and management,
both in Hong Kong and in the PRC.

XIAO Yan Xia, aged 41, joined the Group in 1995. She holds a
Master’s degree in Economics from Zhongshan University and
is presently the Deputy General Manager of the Company. Ms.
Xiao has over 15 years’ experience in investment research and

capital management.

Independent Non-executive Directors

YUEN Pak Yiu, Philip, aged 67, is a solicitor of the High Court
of Hong Kong. Mr. Yuen has over 35 years’ experience in the
legal field and is a director of a number of listed companies. He
is a China appointed Attesting Officer in Hong Kong, a member
of the National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference, and an arbitrator of the China
International Economic & Trade Arbitration Commission.
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LEE Tsung Hei, David, BBS, JP, aged 53, is the Managing
Director of David C. Lee Surveyors Ltd. He qualified as a
Chartered Surveyor in 1973 and registered as an Authorized
Person in 1977. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors, a Registered Professional Surveyor, an associate
of the Incorporated Society of Valuers and Auctioneers and an
associate of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators. Mr. Lee is a
former member of the Central Policy Unit which is known as the
Government Think Tank. He is also a member of the Finance
and Buildings & Tenders Sub-Committees as well as the Audit
Committee of the Hong Kong Housing Society. Mr. Lee is a
Council member of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University and a
Visiting Professor of the Guangzhou University. He is also a panel
member of the Solicitors Disciplinary Tribunal and a member of
the Advisory Committee on Legal Education, the Building Safety
Improvement Loan Scheme Advisory Committee, the

Immigration Tribunal and the Transport Tribunal’s Panel.

WONG Shing Kay, Oliver, aged 50, is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants of the United
Kingdom and an associate member of the Hong Kong Society
of Accountants and Certified General Accountants of Canada.
He is presently practising as a Certified Public Accountant in
Hong Kong and had previously held senior financial positions in
various publicly listed companies both in Hong Kong and

Canada.

Directors’ Profile
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Performance

Amid challenging market conditions, the Group had an active
year and performed well. Turnover for the year ended 31st
December, 2002 increased by 82% from HK$1,170.9 million to
HK$2,126.8 million compared to the previous year. This record
high volume does not include the turnover of a jointly controlled
entity, in which the Group has a 40% interest. Total turnover of
the jointly controlled entity for 2002 amounted to HK$527.5
million (2001: HK$91.7 million) representing an increase of 4.7

times on the prior year.

The Group’s profit from operations before interest and tax for
2002, as compared to 2001, increased by 108% from HK$209.2
million to HK$434.9 million. Higher sales volumes contributed
greatly to earnings and provided much of the impetus for the
improved performance. Demand for the Group’s properties was
encouraging, particularly in respect of projects such as Gallopade
Park — South Court, Pleasant View Garden and Fairview South
Court. These three projects together contributed 57% of the
total turnover for the year.

During the year, the Group continued to exercise stringent cost
control measures and, as a result, a satisfactory gross profit
margin of 36.6% (2001: 33.2%) and an improved direct cost-
to-turnover ratio of 63.4% (2001: 66.8%) were attained. While
expenses in various areas were effectively controlled, the
underlying operating expenses were overall on the rise. In the
face of a strong supply market, various sale-promotion initiatives
and campaigns were launched, particularly for projects in Beijing
where the Group’s brand name was new and in Guangzhou
where market competition remained aggressive. This raised the
selling and marketing expenses up by 81% to HK$227.8 million
(2001: HK$126.2 million). Also, the significant growth in staff
numbers to meet the needs of business expansion and progress
of project developments elevated the general and administrative
expenses to HK$119.0 million (2001: HK$57.1 million), up 108%.
That notwithstanding, the Group is resolved to pursue cost-
containment efforts and keep spendings disciplined.
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T R R4 FEREES27,500,0008 T (ZEF
—4F : 91,700,00087T) * REF LF4.7(5 -

AEER ST FHRFFERRIBALE
EmFER - T E—F8209,200,0008 L EF
108% £434,900,000/8 7T ° $HE & F FFAHK
BEAZRFER  EMAKEARR - XEEY)
X¥TRESATE  LURSIEE -@m - 2
ERERMEMASHEE AR Z=—MEEESE
HIEZFEREETEST% o

FA - NEBEERITERENNRETRE
E bt 8215 EFE36.6% (ZFZ—4F : 33.2%) 1Y
BAKTE - WEEENAEEEE L RNESE
63.4% (ZZEZ—1F : 66.8%) ° HAKEBMEK
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During the year, the Group incurred interest expenses before
capitalization totalling HK$103.9 million. An analysis is set out

below:

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWE DN

FR - AEENETERCANERFERZE
H3%103,900,0008 7T - @S ¢

2002 2001
—EBE-F —EEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Interest on loans wholly repayable ERRAFANEEEE
within five years BWE RS T 103,893 71,896
Less: &
Interest capitalized as part of the cost VERERFPYIZEIB IR
of properties under development HEEAREFE (91,249) (65,958)
12,644 5,938

The average interest rate of borrowing costs incurred during the
year ended 31st December, 2002 was approximately 6.0% per

annum (2001: 6.4% per annum).

Profit from operations covered 4.2 times of the interest expenses
before capitalization, compared to 2.9 times for the previous

year.

Results

Together with the improved performance of a jointly controlled
entity, the Group’s profit attributable to shareholders for the year
under review was HK$229.1 million, an increase of HK$108.1
million or 89% compared to HK$121.0 million achieved for 2001.
Earnings per share of HK$0.23 in 2002 were almost double
relative to HK$0.12 in 2001.

REBEE-_ZZ_#+_A=+—HLFEEE
A7 FAMERL AEEE.0% (—TT—4F : F
F%6.4%) °

RE RN R FTEANER BRI F B #4.2
& MEFRIB2.9E -

EF

AR —EEREHEEERENRE A5
REBSENREEGRTA229,100,0007%8
T B-ET—FH121,000,0008 TN
108,100,000/ 7C8k89% - —ZEZ — FFHH AT
#0237 - MoBET—F 20128 T i —

f& o
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEINWR DN

Financial Position

As at 31st December, 2002, total assets of the Group amounted
to HK$8,747 million whereas total liabilities (excluding minority
interests) stood at HK$5,650 million, representing an increase
of HK$3,121 million and HK$2,457 million respectively on the
previous year. The increase in total assets was indicative of the
implementation of the Group’s expansion commitments and the
extent of additional investments in project developments. The
increase in total liabilities mainly reflected higher levels of bank
borrowings and other payables used in financing operational
activities and investment expenditures.

The Group had a current ratio of 1.16 compared to 1.64 at last
year end, representing a drop of 29%. Shareholders’ equity
increased to HK$2,800 million from HK$2,254 million at 31st
December, 2001, primarily due to the contribution from a HK$172
million increase of retained earnings and a HK$359 million

increase in the asset revaluation reserve.

Liquidity and Borrowings

As at 31st December, 2002, the Group’s liability-to-asset ratio
(i.e. the ratio between total liabilities and total assets, excluding
minority interests) was 65% (2001: 57%). The net debt-to-equity
ratio (i.e. total debt less cash and bank deposits over
shareholders’ equity) was 85% (2001: 49%)).

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED 44 £ & % @ 47 &2 4]
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As at 31st December, 2002, the Group had cash and short-
term bank deposits amounting to HK$489 million, of which
HK$232 million were pledged as collateral for the Group’s
banking facilities. Total borrowings from banks came to
HK$2,307 million, representing an increase of 65% or HK$908
million over the previous year. Gearing, measured by net bank
borrowings as a percentage of shareholders’ equity, increased
from 41% last year to 65% this year.

The Group’s bank borrowings at 31st December, 2002 were all
secured and denominated entirely in Renminbi with a repayable
profile set out as follows:

Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE DN

RZZZZF+ZA=+—10 ~EBHRS
N HASRIT T 70£489,000,000/8 T » Heh
232,000,000/ 7T E YEH R LAHRER AR &= B A9 R 1T
B3k o 2IR1TEE A2,307,000,000/8 7T © &
F 12 hN65%3%908,000,000/8 7T ° ILIFITIEEF
BAMER RS L R EM BB RBREFN
A1 %IBERFEHIOE% °

R-BT-_F+-_A=+—8" ZIKE@E%ETT
EEAREEMEAARKTE - EXFH
Dk

As at As at

HKS$ million 31st December, 2002 31st December, 2001

—EECF —TT—F
BB +=A=+-H +=A=+-8
Within 1 year —FR 1,485 64.4% 916 65.5%
After 1 year but within 2 years —EmMFE 340 14.7% 311 22.3%
After 2 years but within 3 years 2= = 4F 482 20.9% 171 12.2%
Total bank borrowings HEIRITIEE 2,307 1,398
Less: Bank deposits and cash B RITEREES 489 474
Net bank borrowings FIRITEE 1,818 924
As at 31st December, 2002, the Company provided guarantee RZZEZE-_F+_A=+—H XREHKRF
to banks for loan facilities of HK$236 million granted to its E i BRA 7] A2236,000,000/ TTHISRITE 7R 2
subsidiaries. HIER -

Annual Report 2002

ZTTFFR

27



28

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEBANWE DN

Charges on Assets

As at 31st December, 2002, certain assets of the Group with an
aggregate carrying value of HK$2,347 million (2001: HK$2,044
million) were pledged with banks for loan facilities used by

subsidiaries, a jointly controlled entity and related companies.

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31st December, 2002, the Group provided guarantees to
banks for:

BEEEA

R-BEE-_F+-_A=+—H AEBEETHE
FRE{E2,347,000,0008 L (Z 2T —4F
2,044,000,000%7T) WEECER TIRIT - 1EA
MEAR - —RHERZEHELEREEARAMA
EREHEA

HZREE
R_ZEZ_F+_A=+—H KTEEZGRAT
T8 B MERTTREER -

2002 2001
—EBE-F s
HK$ million HKS$ million
BEET BEBT

— mortgage facilities granted to buyers —BEEREEYE

of the Group’s properties BEREHIIEERM

FRITIEL Z R 1,322.9 287.8
— loans borrowed by a jointly controlled entity —— AR ERENEE 84.9 56.6
- loans borrowed by related companies —BERRIEE 106.6 18.9
— loans borrowed by an associate ——MBEAFNEE 9.2 10.0
1,523.6 373.3
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Capital Commitments

The Group’s capital commitments in respect of land and property
construction costs and capital contribution to a jointly controlled
entity, which were authorized and contracted for, amounted to
HK$4,137 million at 31st December, 2002 (2001: HK$2,330
million). With the continuous cash inflow from property sales
and the committed banking facilities coupled with cash in hand,
the Group is in an adequate liquidity position to meet these on-
going capital commitments by stages.

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEFNWE DM

BAREE

RZEE-_F+-A=+—8  K&£BW¥
Nt R YD EREN A R — E R
ERCEABRNECHAEREBINER
AYEH4,137,000,0008 T (CEE—F
2,330,000,0007L) - AR EHEHE
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Report of the Directors
ESEHSE

The Directors are pleased to present their annual report together
with the audited accounts of Hopson Development Holdings
Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the
Group”) for the year ended 31st December 2002.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries,
associates and jointly controlled entity are principally engaged
in investment holding and property development, property
investment and property management.

An analysis of the Group’s turnover and their respective
contributions to operating profit for the year ended 31st
December 2002 by business segment is as follows:

EEEeMARZALREBERAR (AR
Al REMBAR A THEIAEE]DBE—F

EoFt+-A=1— Etifﬁﬁii& BEES
%A -

FEXK

ARAR/—HREERAR  BTEHBR
Al BERR R AR ERTIRRERER
B MFRER - MERRERMFRETERF

AEFEHEE—EE-_F+_A=+—HILFE
BEBKE TN EXBRESSHEE RFNE
BAOMTIAT

Contribution
to operating

Turnover profit

R

=] =11

HK$’000 HK$°000

FHETT FiBT

Property development YRR 2,073,847 414,541
Property investment YA 18,414 16,573
Property management MEER 34,528 1,209
2,126,789 432,323

Other revenue HE A 2,632
434,955

No analysis of the Group’s turnover and contributions to operating
profit by geographical location is presented as substantially all
of the Group’s turnover and profit for the year ended 31st
December 2002 were derived from activities carried out in
mainland China.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31st December 2002, the five largest
customers of the Group accounted for approximately 1% of the
Group’s turnover while the five largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for 72% of the Group’s purchases. In addition, the
largest customer of the Group accounted for approximately 0.3%
of the Group’s turnover while the largest supplier of the Group
accounted for 43% of the Group’s purchases.

Save for the association with certain related companies as set
out in Note 3 to the accompanying audited accounts, none of
the Directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owned more than 5% of the
Company'’s share capital) has a beneficial interest in the Group’s

five largest customers or five largest suppliers.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

Details of the Group’s results for the year ended 31st December
2002 are set out in the consolidated profit and loss account on

page 46 of this annual report.

An interim dividend of HK$0.02 per share, totalling
HK$20,040,000, was declared and paid during the year. The
Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.02
per share, which will bring the total dividends for the year ended
31st December 2002 to HK$40,080,000.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company are set
out in Note 35 to the accounts.

Report of the Directors
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BEFEMIT2% © LN - REBMBEAE P LA
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W o
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RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group and of the Company during
the year are set out in Note 37 to the accounts.

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31st December
2002, calculated under the Companies Act of Bermuda,
amounted to HK$6,608,000 (2001: HK$2,728,000).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the
year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares during the year
ended 31st December 2002.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws and there is no restriction against such
rights under the laws of Bermuda.

PROPERTIES AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in properties and equipment and

investment properties of the Group during the year are set out in

Notes 14 and 15 to the accounts respectively.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries and associates are
set out in Notes 19 and 20 to the accounts respectively.
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BANK LOANS

Particulars of bank loans as at 31st December 2002 are set out
in Notes 30 and 31 to the accounts.

PENSION SCHEMES

Details of the pension schemes are set out in Note 42 to the

accounts.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 125 to
128.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Stock
Exchange”) has granted a waiver to the Company from strict
compliance with the requirements of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“the Listing Rules”)
on the following recurring connected transactions for each of
the three years ended 31st December 2002. Pursuant to the
waliver, the Company is not required to disclose details of such
connected transactions by press notice and/or circular and/or
to obtain prior independent shareholders’ approval. Details of

such connected transactions are as follows:

(i)  During the year ended 31st December 2002, the Group
appointed Guangdong Zhujiang Construction Co. Ltd. (‘GZ
Construction”) as its main contractor in respect of
construction works to be carried out for the property
development projects of the Group. The appointment of
GZ Construction as the Group’s main contractor will be on
normal commercial terms which are fair and reasonable so
far as the shareholders of the Company are concerned.
Further, individual construction contracts will only be
awarded to GZ Construction if the terms offered by it are
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not less favourable than those offered by other contractors.
GZ Construction is a connected person of the Company
under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules because it is a 60%-
owned subsidiary of Guangdong Zhujiang Investment
Limited (“GD Zhujiang”), a minority shareholder of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. During the year ended 31st
December 2002, construction fees paid/payable to GZ
Construction amounted to approximately
HK$1,969,000,000 (2001: HK$950,000,000).

During the year ended 31st December 2002, certain
subsidiaries of the Company entered into agreements with
Guangdong Esteem Property Services Limited (“Esteem”)
whereby Esteem agreed to manage the unsold units of the
Group’s properties in return for management fees equal to
50% of those charged to owners of individual units of the
sold properties. Esteem is a connected person of the
Company under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules because
10% equity interest of Esteem is held by Guangdong
Zhuijiang Property Management Company, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of GD Zhujiang. During the year ended 31st
December 2002, management fees paid/payable to Esteem
amounted to approximately HK$2,250,000 (2001:
HK$1,490,000).

The Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed the

above transactions and confirmed that:

a. the above transactions have been conducted at arm’s
length between the parties on normal commercial terms
and in the ordinary and usual course of the business of
the Group, and are fair and reasonable so far as the
shareholders of the Company are concerned;

b. the above transactions have been carried out on terms
no less favourable than terms available from

independent third parties;
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c. the disclosure provided herein in respect of the details
of the above transactions is in compliance with Rule
14.25 (1)(A) to (D) of the Listing Rules;

(i) during the year ended 31st December 2002, construction
fees paid/payable to GZ Construction amounted to
approximately HK$1,969,000,000 (2001:
HK$950,000,000), which has not exceeded the annual
construction fees payable to GZ Construction in respect of
the year concerned as permitted under the said waiver from
the Stock Exchange; and

(iiy during the year ended 31st December 2002, management
fees paid/payable to Esteem amounted to approximately
HK$2,250,000 (2001: HK$1,490,000), which has not
exceeded the annual management fees payable to Esteem
in respect of the year concerned as permitted under the
said waiver from the Stock Exchange.

The auditors of the Company have reviewed the above
transactions and confirmed that the transactions:

(1) have received approval from the board of Directors;

(2) arein accordance with the pricing policies of the Company;
and

(8) the above transactions have been carried out on terms no
less favourable than terms available from independent third
parties.

Save as disclosed in Note 3 to the accounts, no other contracts
of significance in relation to the Company’s business to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries, associates, jointly
controlled entity or holding company was a party and in which
any of the Company’s Directors had a material interest, subsisted

at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date

of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chu Mang Yee (Chairman)

Mr. Tse Sai Tung, Stones (Managing Director and CEQO)
Mr. Au Yeung Fu, Anthony (Deputy Chairman)

Mr. Xiang Bin (Deputy Chairman)

Mr. Au Wai Kin

Mr. Cheung Fong Wing

Ms. Xiao Yan Xia

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yuen Pak Yiu, Philip
Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David
Mr. Wong Shing Kay, Oliver

All Directors except Mr. Chu Mang Yee and Mr. Tse Sai Tung,
Stones are subject to retirement by rotation at annual general
meetings of the Company in accordance with the Company’s
bye-laws. In accordance with the Company’s bye-laws, Mr. Au
Yeung Fu, Anthony, Mr. Yuen Pak Yiu, Philip, Mr. Lee Tsung Hei,
David and Mr. Wong Shing Kay, Oliver retire from office by rotation
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

None of the Directors have a service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which is not terminable within one year
without payment of compensation other than statutory

compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
DEBT SECURITIES

As at 31st December 2002, the interests of Directors and their
respective associates in the shares of the Company as recorded
in the register maintained under Section 352 of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance or as required pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies, to be notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange were as follows:
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RBADRIREES LR KAIEIS2GEFE
RATIMERMAH SRR AR EE#EST
BHRZ SIS EST R EBEAA R 7 KRB A AT
WER  RZEEZZF+_A=+—H E=F
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R

Number of shares of the Company Percentage

KARRGBHA of shares

Personal Family ~ Corporate Other outstanding

interests interests interests  interests Total {EERT

Name of directors e AR xBEZ  AFEE  HtER &it BB B

Mr. Chu Mang Yee (a) REKTER) - - 637,500,000 - 637,500,000 63.62%

Mr. Au Wai Kin (b) EER %4 D) - - 87,500,000 - 37,500,000 3.74%

Mr. Cheung Fong Wing (c) RFRTE(Q) - - 38,000,000 - 38,000,000 3.79%

Ms. Xiao Yan Xia E e 100,000 - - - 100,000 0.01%
Notes — Bz —

a.  Mr. ChuMang Yee held 637,500,000 shares of the Company through Sounda
Properties Limited, a company wholly-owned by him, and HKSCC Nominees

Limited.

b.  Mr. AuWai Kin held 37,500,000 shares of the Company through a company

wholly owned and controlled by him.

c.  Mr Cheung Fong Wing held 38,000,000 shares of the Company through a

company 60% owned by him and 20% owned by his spouse.

a KEKREEBBHEEZERGONEEXERARLRES
FREE (REEA) AR A A 42 8637,500,0008%
A& ©

b. BERERELBBEZERARESNARBREARF
387,500,0008%f% {7

c.  RFAEAFBEBEACOWIES N HABHEE20%ES
#)— 2 8] #5 8 482 §)38,000,000% A& 17 ©
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Other than disclosed herein, as at 31st December 2002, neither
the directors nor their associates had any interests in any shares
of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance) which were
required to be notified to the Company pursuant to section 341
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (including interests which
they were deemed or taken to have under section 344 of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance) or which were required to be
recorded under section 352 of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

The Company has a share option scheme, under which it may
grant options to employees (including Executive Directors) of
the Group to subscribe for shares in the Company. As at 31st
December 2002, Mr. Tse Sai Tung, Stones and Mr. Xiang Bin,
Executive Directors of the Company, have personal interests in
share options to subscribe for shares of the Company. The
following table discloses movements in the company’s share
options outstanding at the beginning and end of the year:

BRAXFREN  RZBE_F+_A=+—
B EEREBBASRARRREABEE
(L5 MR RARE) RO ERE
EEREES R PEEIF341 G (BRERERE
7 M EE GO FE34AERFREFRERE 2
) AMEARRNER - HRBEFRAGKE
{555 352{5 /8 T rc ik e

ESBREROIESFNER

RARREBHERETE - Bt - AEEHNEER
(BIEHITES) M ERBREARERA TN
o MRZBE-FE+-_A=+—08  X2FH
WITESFHREERBRAEBEERBERA
AR EEREEAER - TREBRAQRE
IRIEREF N 2 BB AR M RITE 2 BN F
MRFRZEE

Number of share options
BREHE
Exercised
Exercise price Beginning  Granted during during
per share of year the year theyear  End of year
Date of grant RHAH BRITEE F1 FARE FRTE FR
Mr. Tse Sai Tung, Stones ~ #itt R 5E4
14th July 1998 —ANANEEATEA HK$1.497% T 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
14th July 1999 —ANELATEA HK$1.008 T 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000
18th September 2002~ —ZZ-FAA+N\H HK$1.1678 7T - 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
3,000,000 1,000,000 - 4,000,000
Mr. Xiang Bin BREE
30th April 2002 “EE-FNA=1H HK$1.178 7T - 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
3,000,000 2,000,000 - 5,000,000
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(1) The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately
before the date of grant of the share options was HK$1.40.

(2) The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately
before the date of grant of the share options was HK$1.45.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, associates, jointly controlled
entity or holding company a party to any arrangements to enable
the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including
debentures) of, the Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31st December 2002, according to the register of
substantial shareholders maintained under Section 33b of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance, the Company had been
notified of the following interests, being 5% or more of the issued
share capital of the Company:
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Number of issued shares  Percentage holding

Name of shareholders BRERAE ERITROEE FRESL
Sounda Properties Limited FEBFXBRAA 637,500,000 63.62%

Save as disclosed above, the Company had no notice of any
interests to be recorded under Section 33b of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance as at 31st December 2002.

INFORMATION ON SHARE OPTION
SCHEMES

At the special general meeting held on 4th November 2002, the
Company adopted a new Share Option Scheme (“the New
Scheme”) and, at the same time, terminated the Share Option
Scheme adopted on 4th April 1998 (“the Old Scheme”).
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For the year ended 31st December 2002, 2,000,000 number of
share options was granted under the Old Scheme. The Directors
do not consider it appropriate to disclose a theoretical value of
the share options granted during the year because in the absence
of a readily available market value of the share options on the
ordinary shares of the Company, any calculation of the value of
options ascertained on various theoretical bases and subjective
assumptions will not be meaningful and may be misleading to
shareholders in the circumstances.

The following is a summary of the New Scheme disclosed in
accordance with the Listing Rules:

1. Purpose of the New As recognition of the contribution
Scheme of the participants by granting
options to them as incentives or

rewards

2. Participants of the New Any executive, employee, director

Scheme (including executive director and
independent non-executive
director), consultant, adviser and/
agent of the company or any of

its subsidiaries

3. Total number of shares 100,200,000 shares unless

available for issue shareholders’ approval has been
under the New Scheme obtained pursuant to the terms of
and percentage of issued the New Scheme (10% of issued
share capital as at

31st December 2002

share capital)
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Maximum entitlerent
of each participant
under the

New Scheme

The period within
which the shares
must be taken up

under an option

The minimum period
for which an option
must be held before
it can be exercised

The total number of shares
issued and to be issued upon
the exercise of the share options
already granted or to be granted
to each participant (including both
exercised and outstanding share
options) in the 12-month period up
to and including the date of grant
shall not exceed 1% of the issued
share capital as at the date of
grant. Any grant of further options
above this limit shall be subject to
certain requirements as stipulated
in the rules of the New Scheme

Commencing on the date of grant
of an option and expiring at 5:00 p.m.
on the earlier of the business day
preceding the fifth anniversary
thereof and the business day
preceding the tenth anniversary of
the date on which the New

Scheme was adopted

Completion of half year’s full-time
services with the Company or a
subsidiary
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Fr AR
B RS HAR

Report of the Directors
EEeRE

BT RhEETEBAE2HE
EZ BRI (BRI
RITEE 2 FERHE) I TEMR
EHa+—EAHEEERE
R B P T RS ETT
ZRBn a2 B NS EBE N
H BB BT % » Bi%
T AL (AT AR 780 1 PR RR A0 BB Al
YRS F A ERAINETAR
BT HREFHRR

BB H AR EZE
A E B AT — (@
EARERNFETE A HH
TEFHR—EZEA AR
RERE) TFARIERR

RARE S —FENEB R T
P F2BIRT

Annual Report 2002 —ZE —FEH

41



42

Report of the Directors
BEEERE

7. The amount payable Nil 7.

on application or
acceptance of the
option and the period
within which payments
or calls must or may
be made or loans for

such purposes must

be paid

8. The basis of The exercise price is determined 8.
determining the by the board of Directors and shall
exercise price at least be the highest of:

a. the closing price of the
Company’s shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date
of grant of the relevant
options;

b. the average closing price of
the Company’s shares
as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding
the date of grant of the
relevant options; and

c. the nominal value of the
Company’s shares
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9. The remaining life of The New Scheme was adopted
on 4th November 2002 and will

expire at 5:00 p.m. on the

the New Scheme

business day immediately
preceding the tenth anniversary
thereof

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.

CODE OF BEST PRACTICE

Throughout the year, the Company was in compliance with the
Code of Best Practice (“the Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules, except that the Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company are not appointed for specific terms.
However, all Directors except for the Chairman and Managing
Director are subject to retirement by rotation at annual general
meetings of the Company in accordance with the Company’s
bye-laws. In the opinion of the Directors, this meets the objective
of the Code.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has set up an audit committee which comprises
Mr. Yuen Pak Yiu, Philip, Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David and Mr. Wong
Shing Kay, Oliver, all of whom are Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company. The primary duties of the audit
committee are to review and supervise the internal control system
and financial reporting process of the Group. The audit committee
met with management and auditors of the Company to discuss
the Group’s internal control procedures and financial reporting
matters during the year ended 31st December 2002.
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SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Directors consider it beneficial to the Group to strengthen
its property investment and development business in Shanghai.
On 20th February 2003, the Group entered into agreements to
acquire the entire interest in a property development project in
Shanghai, mainland China. The aggregate consideration for the
acquisitions together with certain payments and capital
contribution to be payable by the Group in connection with such
investment amounted to approximately HK$402,752,000.

AUDITORS

Arthur Andersen & Co audited the Company’s accounts for the
years ended 31st December 2000 and 2001 and resigned as
the Company’s auditors with effect from 5th July 2002. The
Company, at a special general meeting held on 4th November
2002, has appointed PricewaterhouseCoopers as its auditors.
The accounts were audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who
retire and, being eligible offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the board of directors,
CHU MANG YEE

Chairman

Hong Kong, 14th April 2003
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AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the accounts on pages 47 to 127 which have
been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors are responsible for the preparation of accounts
which give a true and fair view. In preparing accounts which
give a true and fair view it is fundamental that appropriate
accounting policies are selected and applied consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on
our audit, on those accounts and to report our opinion to you.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of
Auditing Standards issued by the Hong Kong Society of
Accountants. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of
evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the
accounts. It also includes an assessment of the significant
estimates and judgements made by the directors in the
preparation of the accounts, and of whether the accounting
policies are appropriate to the circumstances of the company
and the group, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22nd Floor Prince’s Building
Central Hong Kong
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Auditors’ Report
%R &

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary
in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable
assurance as to whether the accounts are free from material
misstatement. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the
overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the
accounts. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis

for our opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion the accounts give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the company and of the group as at 31st December
2002 and of the group’s profit and cash flows for the year then
ended, and have been properly prepared in accordance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 14th April 2003
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For the year ended 31st December 2002 ‘ BHE_ZTT-_F+_A=+—HILFE

Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

mEBE&®ER

2002 2001

—TT-F —ET—F

Note HK$’000 HK$'000

FiisE T TET

Turnover B 4 2,126,789 1,170,871
Cost of sales HEMRA (1,347,736) (782,664)
Gross profit EH 779,053 388,207
Other revenue Hl A 4 2,632 4,288
Selling and marketing expenses HERTSEEER (227,760) (126,181)
General and administrative expenses —WREIBER (118,970) (57,080)
Profit from operations | 5 434,955 209,234
Share of loss of associates DEHEAREE (3,033) =
Share of profit of a jointly controlled entity DGR EE R 91,586 12,584
Finance costs SRR 6 (12,644) (5,938)
Profit before taxation BREE A& A 510,864 215,880
Taxation HiIE 9 (229,811) (90,891)
Profit after taxation (Gt Sl 281,053 124,989
Minority interests DR R (51,971) (4,024)
Profit attributable to shareholders IR (s 10 229,082 120,965
Dividends s 11 40,080 30,050

Earnings per share BiREF

—Basic —EXR 13 HK 23 centsi&fll HK 12 centsi#fll

- Diluted — s 13 HK 23 centsi&fll HK 12 centsi#fll

Annual Report 2002 —ZE —FEH
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As at 31st December 2002

R-FF_F+-A=1+—H

Balance Sheets

EEREREXR

Consolidated Company
&ae N7
2002 2001 2002 2001
It 2 2 “2TF b 2 it & 3
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
i3 TET AT TER TR
Non-current assets FRBEE
Properties and equipment VEPEL 14 31,900 22,507 - =
Investment properties REME 15 2,625,600 1,710,000 - -
Rights to receive rental income hgiil> 16 48,524 = - =
Properties under FERARE
development for JEE
long-term investment iy 17 1,146,549 716,940 = =
Land pending development FERIH 18 311,458 89,056 - =
Investment in subsidliaries RHBARRE 19 - - 742,786 738,382
Investment in associates REBENR 2 RE 20 779 2413 = =
Investment in a jointly R — R R
controlled entity ERIRE 21 85,412 38,431 - =
Goodwil HE 23 6,108 6,587 - -
Due from a director R —2EFHE 3 - 1,000 - 1,000
Total non-current assets FRDEERE 4,256,330 2,586,934 742,786 739,382
Current assets RBEE
Properties under ez ERT
development for sale mE 24 2,690,666 1,751,799 = =
Completed properties A E 2 BER
for sale ES 25 1,066,227 369,536 - =
Accounts receivable FEUBR R 26 121,045 277,167 = =
Prepayments, deposits BIFE . ek
and other current assets At REEE 27 117,760 156,784 130 1,803
Investment in securities BEHLE 28 2,827 4,232 = =
Due from related companies FEWEE A RFR 3 2,765 5,083 = =
Pledged bank deposits BHEARTER 29 232,081 110,221 = =
Cash and other bank deposits Be REMBIER 29 257,321 363,873 3,965 1,715
Total current assets nBEERE 4,490,692 3,039,595 4,095 3,518

HoOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Balance Sheets

49

EEBER
Consolidated Company
&a AR
2002 2001 2002 2001
It 3 2 ZTF e 2 E2T-F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i FER FET FET FHT
Current liabilities k=t
Short-term bank loans HHRTER 30 (1,108,633) (751,483) - =
Long-term bank loans, RERTER
current portion R 31 (375,527) (164,283) - =
Accounts payable FERERR 3832 (714,541) (147,844) - =
Land premium payable, B LitES -
current portion KRR (346,252) (172,907) - =
Deferred income, current portion R - B (349,259) (140,083) = =
Accruals and other payables HREAREMES (287,397) (246,008) (1,184) (1,083)
Due to directors ERNESTE 3 (4,188) (1,562) = =
Due to related companies ENBENRFA 3 (303,314) (76,209) - =
Due to a jointly FER—F R
controlled entity BB FE 3 (212,567) (87,189) - =
Due to ultimate holding company JER SRR A AR 3 - (20,000) - =
Taxation payable FERTHIR 33 (172,303) (45,357) - =
Total current liabilties e B EEE (3,873,981) (1,852,925) (1,184) (1,083)
Net current assets mBAEFE 616,711 1,186,670 2,911 2,435
Total assets less current liabilities eEERRYAGE 4,873,041 3,773,604 745,697 741,817
Non-current liabilities FRBaE
Long-term bank loans, REFTER
non-current portion S 31 (822,598) (482,632) - =
Land premium payable, EfftitdEs -
non-current portion EiSSEE) (75,338) (126,425) - =
Due to a director R —RESFR 3 (10,000) = - =
Due to ultimate holding company [ER SR A AR 3 (20,000) = - =
Deferred income, non-current portion ~ EFEUIA + JEEEERER(D (57,359) (58,889) - =
Deferred taxation ERBE 34 (790,396) (671,964) - -
Total non-current liabilities FENEEREE (1,775,691) (1,339,910) - =
Minority interests SEURFER (297,726) (179,810) - =
Net assets BEHE 2,799,624 2,253,884 745,697 741,817
Represented by- R&k-
Share capital RA& 89 100,200 100,200 100,200 100,200
Reserves s 37 2,699,424 2,153,684 645,497 641,617
Shareholders’ equity et 2,799,624 2,253,884 745,697 741,817
CHU MANG YEE AU YEUNG FU, ANTHONY
KA BEE
Chairman Deputy Chairman
£33 8IFE
Annual Report 2002 —ZE —FEH
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

GEHERER

2002 2001
—FB-F —TTF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
FtEE FET FHET

Operating activities REEE
Net cash inflow/(outflow) REEEZRE

generated from operations A CRH) 58 38(a) 15,471 (17,528)
Interest received BUFE 2,632 4,288
Hong Kong profits tax paid EREBNEE (2,118) -
Mainland China enterprise =R LEE PN

income tax paid EMEH (85,433) (80,787)
Net cash outflow from RETHIRE

operating activities TR (69,448) (94,027)
Investing activities REEE
Additions of properties BAMER

and equipment B (15,287) (11,407)
Increase in land pending frEER T

development bl (227,757) =
Increase in properties under BIERBIRE

development for long-term investment BRI N (810,601) (403,535)
Increase in rights to receive rental income  YgFR I AN (49,627) =
Acquisition of an associate U B8 — Bt 2 N ) - (1,887)
(Increase)/decrease in amounts JrE A BSt = N R FRIE

due from associates (& hn) (7,399) 6,977
Decrease/(increase) in amount el —REEFHIA

due from a director D, (5 1,000 (1,000)
Decrease/(increase) in amounts FEU &R R 5RIE

due from related companies w38 0n) 3,218 (5,577)
Decrease in amount due L — P £ (R4 )

from a jointly controlled entity BERERIERLD - 157,339
Increase in pledged bank deposits BRI IR T RIE 0 (121,860) (70,221)
Others Hith (1,946) (8,234)
Net cash outflow from REFEH RS

investing activities TR (1,230,259) (337,545)
Net cash outflow before REEER 2 RE

financing activities R ER (1,299,707) (431,572)

HoOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31st December 2002

BHE
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

REHRERER
2002 2001
g 2 —TT—F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
FtaE FET FHET
Financing activities METE 38(b)
Proceeds from issue of shares AR BEATFT1S5RIE - 1,360
Share issue expenses EhEETER - @3)
Capital contributions from B F SRR
minority shareholders of subsidiaries ZEBEREER 65,945 19,171
New short-term bank loans ¥R HIRITE R 1,108,633 623,009
Repayments of short-term bank loans BIBEHRTER (751,483) (422,462)
New long-term bank loans g RERITER 715,247 588,774
Repayments of long-term bank loans EEREEITERK (164,037) (323,166)
Advances from directors EEE 12,630 45
Repayments to directors EBEERN @) (1,507)
Advances from related companies EERE/NCIE-E 254,349 28,120
Repayments to related companies EREE RN AR (27,244) (9,341)
Advances from a jointly controlled entity ~ —fE#% I—HI%U,\ BEEAGK 314,463 87,189
Repayments to a jointly controlled entity &8 — & L R H| EZ 2= 2k (189,085) =
Advances from ultimate holding company & 447 ’”\7 K - 20,000
Interest paid BFE (103,893) (71,896)
Dividends paid BRRE (40,080) (40,010)
Net cash inflow from MELTE2RE
financing activities WAEEE 1,195,441 499,283
(Decrease)/increase in cash and RekReEFEEM
cash equivalents CRiA) /1 hn (104,266) 67,711
Cash and cash equivalents at FYRE KRS
beginning of year EEY 363,873 290,363
Effect of foreign HNIE IR SR
exchange translation FE (2,286) 5,799
Cash and cash equivalents at FrBRe R
end of year EEY 38(c) 257,321 363,873
Annual Report 2002 —ZE —FEH
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REeEEa® Bk

2002 2001
—EECF =T —F
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
Mo5E FHExT FHET
Balance as at 1st January R—A—B2Z&s% 2,253,884 2,155,249
Profit attributable to shareholders N 37 229,082 120,965
Proceeds from issue of shares, R& 1R B TR SRIE
net of share issue expenses (fkshgrEE1TE ) 35 & 37 - 1,357
Surplus on revaluation of WEMFEEH RS
investment properties, (F0BR A B A RE
net of mainland China land T HbIBR(ER)
appreciation tax 37 359,024 10,524
Translation adjustments fEH =5 37 (2,286) 5,799
Payment of dividends IR E 37 (40,080) (40,010)
Balance as at 31st December R+-—A=+—HBz&&% 2,799,624 2,253,884

HoOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
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ORGANISATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Hopson Development Holdings Limited was incorporated
in Bermuda on 24th July 1997 as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda. Its shares have been listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 27th May 1998.

The Company is an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entity are
principally engaged in investment holding and property
development, investment and management.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
comply with accounting standards issued by the Hong Kong
Society of Accountants. The principal accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these accounts are set out
below:

(a) Basis of measurement

The accounts have been prepared on the historical cost
basis, as modified by the revaluation of investment

properties and investment in securities.

(b) Basis of presentation

The Company’s Directors and management are
confident that when the Group’s short-term bank
borrowings and current portion of long-term bank
borrowings become due, they will either be rolled over
or replaced by new sources of financing and will not
impede the future operation of the Group. Accordingly,
the accounts have been prepared on the going concern
basis.

Notes to the Accounts
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Notes to the Accounts

iR B MY EE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(©

(d)

Adoption of new/revised Statements of Standard

Accounting Practice

Commencing from 1st January 2002, the Group has
adopted the following Statements of Standard
Accounting Practice (“SSAPs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Society of Accountants:

SSAP 1 (revised) Presentation of financial
statements

SSAP 11 (revised) Foreign currency translation

SSAP 15 (revised) Cash flow statements

SSAP 33
SSAP 34 (revised)

Discontinuing operations
Employee benefits

Except for certain presentational changes which have
been made upon the adoption of SSAP 1 (revised) and
SSAP 15 (revised), the adoption of the above new/
revised SSAPs has no material effect on the financial

statements.

The 2001 comparative figures presented herein have
incorporated the effect on the adoption of the new/
revised SSAPs.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated accounts include the accounts of the
Company and its subsidiaries, together with the Group’s
share of post-acquisition results and reserves of its
associates and jointly controlled entities under the equity
method of accounting. The results of subsidiaries,
associates and jointly controlled entities acquired or
disposed of during the year are consolidated from or
to their effective dates of acquisition or disposal.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

(€

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary
represents the difference between the proceeds of the
sale and the Group’s share of its net assets together
with any unamortised goodwill or negative goodwill or
goodwill/negative goodwill taken to reserves and which
was not previously charged or recognised in the
consolidated profit and loss account and any related

accumulated foreign currency translation reserve.

All significant intercompany transactions and balances

within the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside
shareholders in the operating results and net assets of
subsidiaries.

Intangibles

()  Goodwill

Goodwill arises where the fair value of the
consideration given exceeds the Group’s share of
the aggregate fair values of the identifiable net
assets acquired. Goodwill is recognised as an asset
in the balance sheet and is amortised on a straight-
line basis over its estimated economic life of five
years. The carrying value of goodwill is assessed
periodically or when factors indicating an
impairment are present. Any impairment of goodwill
is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the impairment occurs.

Notes to the Accounts
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Notes to the Accounts

iR B MY EE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e) Intangibles (continued)

(i)  Rights to receive rental income

Rights to receive rental income is recognised as
an intangible asset and amortised on a straight-
line basis over their estimated economic life of
fifteen years. Where an indication of impairment
exists, the carrying amount of such intangible asset
is assessed and written down immediately to its

recoverable amount.

() Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are those entities in which the Group
directly or indirectly controls more than one half of the
voting power; has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies; to appoint or remove the majority
of the members of the board of directors; or to cast
majority votes at the meetings of the board of directors.

In the Company’s balance sheet, investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for
impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are

accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends

received and receivable.

HoOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(@

(h)

Associates

An associate is a company over which the Group has
significant influence, but not control or joint control, over
its financial and operating policy decisions. In the
consolidated accounts, investment in associates is
accounted for under the equity method of accounting,
whereby the investment is initially recorded at cost and
is adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition results of associates, distributions
received from associates, other necessary alterations
in the Group’s proportionate interest in associates
arising from changes in the equity of associates that
have not been included in the profit and loss account
of associates, amortisation of the difference between
the cost of investment and the Group’s share of the
aggregate fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired at the date of acquisition (goodwill), and any
impairment loss. The Group’s share of post-acquisition
results of associates is included in the consolidated
profit and loss account.

Contractual joint ventures

A contractual joint venture is an entity established
between the Group and one or more other parties for a
pre-determined period of time, with the rights and
obligations of the joint venture partners being governed
by a contract. If the Group is able to govern and control
the financial and operating policies of the contractual
joint venture so as to obtain benefits from its activities,
such joint venture is considered as a de facto subsidiary
and is accounted for as a subsidiary. If the Group can
only exercise significant influence over the contractual
joint venture, such joint venture is accounted for as an
associate.

Notes to the Accounts
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Notes to the Accounts

iR B MY EE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

@

Jointly controlled entities

A jointly controlled entity is a joint venture where the
Group and other parties undertake an economic activity
which is subject to joint control and none of the
participating parties has unilateral control over the
economic activity. In the consolidated accounts,
investment in jointly controlled entities is accounted for
under the equity method of accounting, whereby the
investment is initially recorded at cost and is adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition results of jointly controlled entities,
distributions received from jointly controlled entities,
other necessary alterations in the Group’s proportionate
interest in jointly controlled entities arising from changes
in equity of jointly controlled entities that have not been
included in the profit and loss account of the jointly
controlled entities, amortisation of the difference
between the cost of investment and the Group’s share
of the aggregate fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired at the date of acquisition (goodwill), and any
impairment loss. The Group’s share of post-acquisition
results of jointly controlled entities is included in the
consolidated profit and loss account.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

0

(k)

Jointly controlled assets

A joint venture which does not involve the establishment
of a separate entity but involves the joint control and
ownership by the Group and other parties of assets
contributed to, or acquired for the purpose of, the joint
venture is accounted for as a jointly controlled asset. In
the consolidated accounts, the Group’s share of jointly
controlled assets and any liabilities incurred jointly with
other joint venture partners are recognised and classified
according to the nature of the relevant items. Income
from the sale or use of the Group’s share of the output
of jointly controlled assets is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to the Group, whilst the Group’s
share of expenses in respect of jointly controlled assets
is recognised as incurred.

Properties and equipment and depreciation

Properties and equipment, other than investment
properties, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment loss. Major
expenditures on modifications and betterments of
properties and equipment which will increase their future
economic benefits are capitalised, while expenditures
on maintenance and repairs are expensed when
incurred. Depreciation is provided on a straight-line
basis to write off the cost of each asset over its
estimated useful life. The annual rates of depreciation
are as follows:
Leasehold land 2% (lease term)
Buildings 2%

Furniture and office equipment 20%

Motor vehicles 30%
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iR B MY EE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k) Properties and equipment and depreciation (continued)

V)

The depreciation methods and useful lives are reviewed
periodically to ensure that the methods and rates of
depreciation are consistent with the expected pattern
of economic benefits from properties and equipment.

Gains and losses on disposal of properties and
equipment are recognised in the profit and loss account
based on the net disposal proceeds less the then
carrying amount of the assets.

Investment properties

Investment properties are leasehold interests in land
and buildings in respect of which construction and
development work have been completed and which
are held for their long-term investment potential. These
properties are included in the balance sheet at their
open market value on the basis of an annual valuation
by independent qualified valuers. All changes in the
value of investment properties are dealt with in the
investment property revaluation reserve unless the
balance of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit
on a portfolio basis, in which case the net deficit is
charged to the profit and loss account. When an
investment property is disposed of, previously
recognised revaluation surpluses are reversed and the
gain or loss on disposal reported in the profit and loss
account is determined based on the net disposal
proceeds less the original cost.

No depreciation is provided for investment properties
unless the unexpired lease term is 20 years or less, in
which case depreciation is provided on the then carrying

value over the unexpired lease term.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m) Properties under development

Properties under development for sale, the pre-sale of
which has not commenced, are included in current
assets at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Properties under development for sale, the pre-sale of
which has commenced, are included in current assets
at cost plus attributable profits, less foreseeable losses
and sale instalments received and receivable. Properties
under development for long-term investment are stated

at cost less any impairment loss.

The cost of properties under development consists of
land costs, construction expenditures, borrowing costs
directly attributable to construction of such properties
and other direct costs. Net realisable value is based on
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
as determined by management with reference to the
prevailing market conditions, less further costs expected
to be incurred to completion and selling and marketing

expenses.

No depreciation is provided on properties under
development.

Notes to the Accounts
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iR B MY EE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

(o)

()]

Land pending development

Land pending development is land acquired and
pending a definite plan to be developed for sale or long-
term investment. It is stated at cost less any impairment
loss. Land costs include land premium costs, site
clearance costs and other direct costs of bringing the
land to a condition suitable for development. When the
intention is clear and development has commenced,
land to be developed for sale will be classified as
properties under development for sale, while land to
be developed for investment will be classified as

properties under development for long-term investment.

No depreciation is provided on land pending
development.

Completed properties for sale

Completed properties for sale are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is
based on estimated selling prices in the ordinary course
of business as determined by management with
reference to the prevailing market conditions, less selling

and marketing expenses.

Investment in securities

Securities that are held for the purpose of generating a
profit from short-term fluctuations in price are classified
as investment in securities, and are included in the
balance sheet at their fair values. All changes in the fair
values of investment in securities and gains and losses
on disposal of investment in securities are recognised
in the profit and loss account when they arise.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(g) Accounts receivable

Provision is made against accounts receivable to the
extent they are considered to be doubtful. Accounts
receivable in the balance sheet are stated net of such

provision, if any.

Impairment of assets

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of one of these assets may not be recoverable.
Whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount, an impairment loss representing
the difference between the carrying amount and the
recoverable amount of an asset is recognised in the
profit and loss account. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s net selling price and value in use.
The net selling price is the amount obtainable from the
sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction less the
costs of the disposal, while value in use is the present
value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise
from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal
at the end of its useful life.

Reversal of impairment loss of an asset recognised in
prior years is recorded when there is an indication that
the impairment loss recognised for the asset no longer
exists or has decreased. The reversal is recorded in

the profit and loss account.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Provisions and contingencies

A provision is recognised when there is a present
obligation, legal or constructive, as a result of a past
event and it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligations, and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligations. Provisions are reviewed
regularly and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate. Where the effect of the time value of money
is material, the amount of a provision is the present
value of the expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the accounts.
They are disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.
A contingent asset is not recognised in the accounts
but disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is
probable.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Turnover and revenue recognition

Turnover (net of applicable business tax) consists of (i)
pre-sale and sale of properties, (i) rental income, and
(iii) property management fees. Revenue is recognised
when the outcome of a transaction can be measured
reliably and when it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the

Group. Revenue is recognised on the following bases:

() Pre-sale and sale of properties

Pre-sale of properties under development for sale
under legally-binding agreements is recognised by
reference to the stage of completion of the
properties, with the profit recognised restricted to
the amount of instalments received. No revenue
from pre-sale of properties is recognised until the
construction has progressed to a stage when
completion of the properties and the ultimate
realisation of profit can be reliably estimated. Sale
of completed properties held for sale is recognised
when a legally-binding agreement has been
executed, with the profit recognised restricted to
the amount of instalments received.

When a purchaser defaults in the payment of
instalments and the Group exercises its right to
terminate the sale, the revenue and the related profit
previously recognised are reversed and the
instalments received and forfeited are credited to
the profit and loss account.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

() Turnover and revenue recognition (continued)

(i) Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the period of the relevant leases.

(i) - Property management fees

Property management fees are recognised when
the service is rendered.

(iv) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion
basis, taking into account the principal amounts
outstanding and the interest rates applicable.

Deferred income represented amounts received for

which the earning process has not been completed.

(u) Taxation

Individual companies within the Group provide for profits
tax on the basis of their profits for financial reporting
purposes, adjusted for income and expense items
which are not assessable or deductible for profits tax
pUrposes.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u)

(v)

(w)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred taxation is provided under the liability method,
at the current tax rate, in respect of significant timing
differences between profit as computed for taxation
purposes and profit as stated in the accounts, except
when it is considered that no liability will arise in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets are not
recognised unless the related benefits are expected to

crystallise in the foreseeable future.

Advertising and promotion costs

Costs of advertising and promotion are expensed as
incurred.

Employee benefits

()  Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity

leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
(i) Pension obligations
The Group’s contributions to the defined

contribution retirement scheme are expensed as

incurred.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

(v)

@

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisitions, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part
of the cost of that asset.

All other borrowing costs are charged to the profit and

loss account in the year in which they are incurred.

Operating leases

Operating leases represent leases under which
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the leased assets remain with the lessors. Rental
payments under operating leases are charged to the
profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the

period of the relevant leases.

Foreign currency translation

Individual companies within the Group maintain their
books and records in the primary currencies of their
respective operations (“functional currencies”). In the
accounts of the individual companies, transactions in
other currencies during the year are translated into the
respective functional currencies at the applicable rates
of exchange prevailing at the time of the transactions;
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in other
currencies are translated into the respective functional
currencies at the applicable rate of exchange in effect
at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses
are dealt with in the profit and loss account of the
individual companies.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(z) Foreign currency translation (continued)

The Group prepares consolidated accounts in Hong
Kong dollars. For the purpose of consolidation, all the
assets and liabilities of subsidiaries with functional
currencies other than Hong Kong dollars are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the applicable rates of
exchange in effect at the balance sheet date; all income
and expense items are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the applicable average exchange rates during
the year. Exchange differences arising from such
translation are dealt with as movements in cumulative

translation adjustments.

(aa) Segments

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial
reporting, the Group has determined that business
segments be presented as the primary reporting format
and geographical as the secondary reporting format.

Segment assets consist of primarily all of the Group’s
operating assets, while segment liabilities consist of
primarily all of the Group’s operating liabilities. Capital
expenditure comprises additions to investment
properties, properties under development for long-term
investment, rights to receive rental income, and
properties and equipment.

(bb) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance
sheet at cost. For the purposes of the cash flow
statement, cash and cash equivalents are short-term,
highly liquid investments which are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash without notice and which

were within three months of maturity when acquired.
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3. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party or

exercise significant influence over the other party in making

3. BEALXRS

FEAN L IZ SR N EERREES S —
FTEIMER I R B BARTER S — 171
BARENNAL - B - HEZFEALXMA

financial and operating decisions. Parties are also considered — AT ZESIRA— AT 2ERTE - T
to be related if they are subject to common control or RABEEAT -
common significant influence.
(@) The Group had the following significant transactions (a) NEE T HEEEQARET FNIEAR
with related companies: 5
2002 2001
—BECF —TTf
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TEL
Office rentals paid/payable B/ R —RBE A
to an associate CHAERE 860 900
Garden and floral design fees received/ Bl Rk — R R
receivable from a jointly ERBEMHE
controlled entity REtEME 8,300 =
Property design fees paid/ payable to a related company, B/ Eff—HEEEA A
which is beneficially owned by an independent (BARAR—RBUL
non-executive director of FRTESERAER)
the Company ZELE - 612
Property construction fees paid/payable Bt/ EN—HEERR
to a related company* ZMEREE 1,969,000 950,000
Property design fees paid/payable Bt/ R —REEA
to a related company* ZMESEE 29,369 11,499
Consultation fees for project planning paid/payable Bt /R —REEA
to a related company* ZIRE B B - 58
Office rentals paid/payable Bt /R —REEA
to a related company* Wi /N 2,832 1,760
Decoration charges paid/payable Bt/ BN —HEERT
to a related company* LEEE 1,544 =
Communication network installation fees paid/payable Bt/ EN—HEERT
to a related company* JEEBEESIREE 1,386 =
Property management fees paid/payable Bt/ E—HEERT
to a related company* CEERE 512 =
Interest expense paid/payable B/ ENBELR
to related companies* ZHBRAY 11,948 =
Advertising income received/receivable from a Bl /N —FREEAR
related company* L EE 272 =
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3. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@ The Group had the following significant transactions
with related companies: (continued)

Note —

These companies are a minority shareholder of certain subsidiaries

of the Company and subsidiaries of the minority shareholder.

In the opinion of the Company’s Directors, the above related
party transactions were conducted in the normal course of
business and at normal commercial terms.

(o) Details of the balances with directors and related
companies are:

Notes to the Accounts
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(b) HESREER RGNS -

Maximum balance

outstanding
during the year
2002 2001 FEAREER
bk -3 ZETF RRiEH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THT TET
Due from a director Eh—%EF
Mr. Xiang Bin byt - 1,000 1,000
Due from related companies M EE AR
Amount due from minority EYARARET
shareholders of certain WEARZ
subsidiaries of the Company DERER
and subsidiaries of ZEDERE L
the minority shareholders WEAE 2 5E 2,765 269 2,765
Amount due from a shareholder of FEUEE AR~
an associate B 2 70E - 2,830 2,830
Amount due from a joint venture pariner  EUIIERBIER —4
of a property development project AEBM IR - 2,884 2,884
2,765 5,983
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72 Notes to the Accounts

iR B M &
3. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 3. BEALRES (@)
(o) Details of the balances with directors and related (o) HEHREEARGHRHFE (B

companies are: (continued)

2002 2001
—BECF —EE—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHET
Due to directors ENES
Mr. Chu Mang Yee KRBT E 11,462 894
Mr. Tse Sai Tung, Stones E e 400 =
Mr. Xiang Bin B S 1,662 -
Mr. Au Wai Kin BREREEAE 664 668
14,188 1,562
Less: Non-current portion B IEmENERD
Mr. Chu Mang Yee RAMEAE (10,000) =
4,188 1,562
Due to related companies FERAE R A
Amount due to minority FENARRET
shareholders of certain MEBARZ
subsidiaries of the Company DEIRE K
and subsidiaries of the ZELVERRZ
minority shareholders UN) NG /0] 303,314 76,209
In addition, as at 31st December 2002, the Group had o RZEZ=F+—H=1+—H"
accounts payable of HK$570,039,000 (2001: REBENAARETHBEAT -2
HK$94,340,000) due to a subsidiary of a minority HFRR 2 BB AR YEREER
shareholder of certain subsidiaries of the Company in 570,039,000 L (ZFF—F :
respect of property construction fees (see Note 32). 94,340,000/%87T) (RKI3E32) o
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3. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c) As at 31st December 2002, all outstanding balances
with directors, a jointly controlled entity and related
companies were unsecured, non-interest bearing and
without pre-determined repayment terms, except that
(i) HK$10,000,000 due to a director and
HK$20,000,000 due to ultimate holding company were
not repayable within one year and (ii) approximately
HK$47,533,000 due to a related company bore interest

at a rate of approximately 5.7% per annum.

(d) As at 31st December 2002, approximately
HK$173,312,000 (2001: HK$82,611,000) of the
Group’s investment properties (see Note 15),
approximately HK$175,763,000 (2001:
HK$174,033,000) of the Group’s properties under
development for long-term investment (see Note 17),
and approximately HK$4,909,000 (2001: Nil) of the
Group’s completed properties for sale (see Note 25)
were pledged as collateral for bank loans borrowed by
a jointly controlled entity. As at 31st December 2002,
approximately HK$66,390,000 (2001: HK$89,719,000)
of the Group’s completed properties for sale (see Note
25) and none (2001: HK$19,081,000) of the Group’s
investment properties (see Note 15) were pledged as
collateral for bank loans borrowed by a related

company.

(e) As at 31st December 2002, the Group provided
guarantees to banks for loans borrowed by an
associate, a jointly controlled entity and related
companies of approximately HK$9,186,000 (2001:
HK$10,035,000), approximately HK$84,906,000

HK$56,604,000) and approximately

HK$106,604,000 (2001: HK$18,868,000), respectively

(2001:

(see Note 41).
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BEALRE (&)

(c)

R_TT_F+-A=+—8 HE
RS EENEEARZE
B SRR EIRIR « 2 B RAETEEN
H - M) — %%‘:’”1510 000,000
BILTRENEEERAARE
20,000,000/ 7 BB — & A28 K (i)
FER — &8 A "I 5RIA A947,533,0007
TLARERELIS. 7% 8

RZZEE-F+-_A=1+—H0  £&H
B (R KEE15) 49173,312,000
BT (ZEE—F : 82,611,000/ 7T)

REERERAREZEBERYE (R
BMi3E17) #9175,763,000/8 T (- EE—
F 1 174,083,000/ 7T) + LARAEETA]
HEENEEXYE (RME25) 4
4,909,000 T (ZEE—F : &) B2
HEA—RARIES EREATERITER
ZERR RZTETFF+_A=1+—
B AEEAHEEZEZRME (R
Bi3E25) #166,390,000%8 7T (Z T —
% : 89,719,000 7T) RAEE 2K E
W (REF15) TE (T —F -

19,081 ooo;%rz) EHEMER—EREE

RAIFMBRITERZERS -

HREE %IJE%S&E%L’AE?
) Jﬁ%ﬂzm 186,000 T (=TT —
£ : 10,085,000 7T) * 4984,906,000
BT (ZZTZ—F : 56,604,000/ 7T) &
47106,604, ooo;‘%ﬁ(:%%fi :
18,868,000/ L) 2 #R1TE RIRMHIER
(RFIEE41) ©

ti
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iR B M EE

4. TURNOVER AND REVENUE SRR WS

Turnover and revenue consisted of: EEBR MRS
2002 2001
—EE-F —ET—F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F#BT FHET
Sale of properties HEME 2,073,847 1,143,381
Rental income HEWA 18,414 2,896
Property management fees MEEEE 34,528 24,594
Total turnover BT 2,126,789 1,170,871
Interest income F BEYA 2,632 4,288
Total revenue Pl g 2,129,421 1,175,159
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Bk B M &
5. PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS 5. #REER
Profit from operations is determined after charging and G T TR RET A TSI IBEE &S
crediting the following items: E
2002 2001
—ERCF —ET—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
After charging — Bk —
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) & LA (BIEEEES)

(see Note 7) (RPFFET) 90,677 47,650
Advertising expenses BEEE 156,534 75,177
Operating lease rentals in respect of premises ¥4 & A E 4,239 3,021
Depreciation of properties and equipment Y R 5,820 3,355
Loss on disposal of properties and equipment H & ¥ & & ~ 518 74 38
Amortisation s

— goodwill (included in general and —AE(BRE—RK

administrative expenses) 1TEER) 2,425 1,647

— rights to receive rental income — AR e

(included in cost of sales) (PEEHEKA) 1,103 =
Provision for amount due from FEU— s A ]

an associate OB 2 B 6,000 =
Write-off of cost of properties EISEIIE D PN 5,355 =
Loss on investment in securities BHREEE 1,405 2,591
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEN B < 988 888
Net exchange loss b 5 ESi8)55R 59 =
After crediting — BFrA—

Rental income, less outgoings LU A k2 ) 16,573 2,606
Interest income from bank deposits SRITEREF B YA 2,632 4,288
Net exchange gain P& 5 W e 558 - 85
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iR B M EE

FINANCE COSTS

6. MIEERAE

2002 2001
—EECF —TT—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Interest on bank loans wholly repayable ARAFAEZHEEN
within five years IRITEF B 91,945 71,896
Interest on loans from related companies AR AF W 2HEEN
wholly repayable within five years BENRERF A
(see Note 3(a)) (ﬁﬁﬁﬁ?S(a)) 11,948 -
Total borrowing costs incurred FTE £ B EBE KA 103,893 71,896
Less: amount capitalised as part of the cost ¥ : BEFVEZERE W HRA
of properties under development —E e RE (91,249) (65,958)
12,644 5,938

The average interest rate of borrowing costs capitalised
during the year ended 31st December 2002 was
approximately 6.0% per annum (2001: 6.4% per annum).
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BR B M &E
STAFF COSTS (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ 7. EIRAK (BREEEHE)
EMOLUMENTS)
2002 2001
—EE_F —EE—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#&T FHET
Salaries and allowances e MoEBh 61,323 34,085
Sales commission and bonus HE MRS RIEA 22,136 12,190
Pension costs — Defined contribution plans 3R IKE A — A& T2
(see Note 42) (RFF5E42) 6,540 1,375
Provision for long service payment REARE S HHE 678 -
90,677 47,650
DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ 8. EERSRTHAEMSE
EMOLUMENTS
() Details of emoluments paid/payable to directors of the @ B/ ENAAREENIEESD
Company are: ™
2002 2001
—EECF —TE—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET T
Fees for executive directors HWITEENHESE - -
Fees for independent non-executive BN IEHITEETNHES
directors 150 120
Other emoluments for executive directors #1778 % H)E il &
— Salaries and allowances — ¥ RoERL 9,495 8,925
— Retirement contributions —RIREHR 57 65
Other emoluments for non-executive EHITESHEMNS
directors - =
9,702 9,110
Annual Report 2002 —ZE —FEH

77



31st December 2002 | —2Z=4+=A=+—8

78

Notes to the Accounts

iR B M EE

8. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ 8. EERSKITHAEME (&

EMOLUMENTS (continued)

() Details of emoluments paid/payable to directors of the @ BN/ EAEALFRESHMEFET
Company are: (continued) T (8)
No directors waived any emoluments during the year. RAFERN @ BEEEHETAES -
No incentive payment for joining the Group or RAFER @ WEEN,EAERES
compensation for loss of office was paid/payable to P <2 1 /4% 0N BE 7N &= () & 4% B o ol B AR
any director during the year. & -
Analysis of directors’ emoluments by number of REZ AN EMERFIE S HESINE
directors and emolument ranges is as follows: AT -
2002 2001
—EEC-R “TT—F
Executive directors HITE=
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,000/8 7T 4 B
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ 722,500,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 723,000,000/ 7T - 2
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001/ 723,500,000/ 7T 2 -
Non-executive directors FNTES
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,000/ 7T & 3
10 11
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BREME
8. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ 8. EERERITHAEME (B
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(b) Details of remuneration of the five highest paid b)) AEmZEHAL (BRENTESREM
individuals (including executive directors and other EE) HMEFFBaT
employees) are:
The five highest paid individuals consist of: IEGReHFALTEE
2002 2001
—EE_fF —EE—F
Number of directors FEAH 3
Number of employees BEAH 2
5, 5
The emoluments paid/payable to the highest paid B BN EAAREENESIA
individuals who are directors of the Company have been THENS B 3R X HiFES(a) - Bt
included in Note 8(a) above. Details of emoluments paid/ N &= EENMSFBNT -
payable to the highest paid employees are:
2002 2001
—2ECH it
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Basic salaries and allowances HAH & MR, 2,974 1,475
Inducement fees T 1,972 -
Retirement contributions RIRSHK 6 24
4,952 1,499
No emolument was paid to the five highest paid RAFERN  AE&EaRFAT (BEE
individuals (including directors and other employees) EREMES) WEENEAEBSES
as compensation for loss of office during the year. BERAA(E o
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iR B M EE

8. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ 8. ESREMRTHAEME (H)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) Details of remuneration of the five highest paid b) AEZEHFAL(BERITESREM
individuals (including executive directors and other BE)HMEFBELT : (8B)

employees) are: (continued)

Analysis of emoluments paid to the highest paid AR RFEIDNE N ReHE
employees by number of individuals and emolument BME T
ranges is as follows:

2002 2001
—EECF —TE—F

Nil to HK$1,000,000 ZZ1,000,0007 7T, - 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7L £2,000,0007% 7T 1 =
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7T £3,500,0007 7T 1 =
2 2
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iR B M &
TAXATION 9. BiE
Taxation consisted of: HIEBLE
2002 2001
—EBE-F —EEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Company and subsidiaries AFRYTBAA]
Current taxation — ZRHEAFIE —
Hong Kong profits tax EBENEH 5,210 1,060
Mainland China enterprise income tax AR K BE (D ZEFTIS AL 155,612 75,565
Mainland China land appreciation tax PR B R B i (B AR 24,384 8,926
Deferred taxation — ERERITE —
Mainland China enterprise income tax AR B RPEZEFTEEL - 1,187
185,206 86,738
Jointly controlled entity R[S R
Current taxation — ZRHEAFIE —
Mainland China enterprise income tax AR B R PE S E TS 23,140 4,153
Mainland China land appreciation tax R B K B - A (B R 21,465 -
44,605 4,153
229,811 90,891
(a) Hong Kong profits tax (a) BBREBH
Hong Kong profits tax is provided at the rate of 16% BFEENERIORRELELNKEEE
(2001: 16%) on the estimated assessable profit arising Bt ER R S AIE16% (—TT —
in or derived from Hong Kong. F 1 16%) BT R B -
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iR B MY EE

9. TAXATION (Continued)

(b) Overseas income tax

()

The Company is exempt from taxation in Bermuda until
March 2016. Subsidiaries established in the British
Virgin Islands are incorporated under the International
Business Companies Acts of the British Virgin Islands
and, accordingly, are exempt from British Virgin Islands
income taxes. Subsidiaries established and operated
in mainland China are subject to mainland China
enterprise income tax at the rate of 33% (2001: 33%).

Mainland China land appreciation tax

Mainland China land appreciation tax is levied at
progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales
of properties less deductible expenditures including
costs of land and development and construction
expenditures. The mainland China National Tax Bureau
granted a ruling in 1999 to exempt development
projects registered before 1st January 1994 from
payment of mainland China land appreciation tax up to
31st December 2000, whilst sales of properties relating
to development projects registered after 1st January
1994 are subject to mainland China land appreciation

tax.

10. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

The consolidated profit attributable to shareholders includes
a profit of approximately HK$43,960,000 (2001:
HK$23,509,000) dealt with in the accounts of the Company.

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED 44 £ & % @ 47 &2 4]

9. BHEGEE

(b) BINEREH

()

RATERCHHNERENEEE T
—NFZ=H - ERBRELESKIIAM
BARIMRERBELEHSERARERD
BVAREMACSL » #lt - S ERBEL
BBFEH o RATIR P BRI K
RERMBATIR33% (T —F
33%) ZHEBHRPBEARELEME
i o

HH B K BE & i AR E B

FR B R R (E AL+ 3B (E - B
EREPSFORHE A HRIER (B
BB RS MEERAR) - ZRE
i 30% ZE60%EU o A B AFER K3
BRR—ANNERG —IBER - #R
R—ANmF—HA—HRZIAZERR
BT EAE I MEENREE T
ZE+-A=+—B MR- hhmEF
— R —RRRIAMZEIR R AIZERMT
BIARE -3 IB(EF -

10. PR ERAE(REF

IR FE (AR AR A BN A RIFABR B A i
B)5# M 443,960,000 T (ZEE—F
23,509,000/ 7T) °



11.

12.

31st December 2002 | —EE-_F+_-A=+—H

Notes to the Accounts

BREME
DIVIDENDS 11. RE
Dividends consisted of: & EBfE
2002 2001
—EBE-F —EEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Interim dividend of HK$0.02 AR B B AR E AR
(2001: HK$0.01) 0.02/& 7T
per ordinary share (ZZEZ—%F : 0.01787L) 20,040 10,010
Proposed final dividend of HK$0.02 B AR E ST R
(2001: HK$0.02) 0.02/87T
per ordinary share (ZZEZ—%F : 0.02787) 20,040 20,040
40,080 30,050
RETAINED PROFIT 12. REEF
Retained profit/(accumulated loss) consisted of: REBaH, (REHEE) B1F
2002 2001
—BECF —EEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Company PiN/N 6,608 2,728
Subsidiaries NP ENE 831,341 707,547
Associates /NG| (3,033) =
Jointly controlled entity HEEHIEES 55,412 8,431
890,328 718,706
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13. EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. BREF

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year
ended 31st December 2002 is based on the consolidated
profit attributable to shareholders of approximately
HK$229,082,000 (2001: HK$120,965,000) and the
weighted average number of approximately 1,002,000,000
shares (2001: 1,000,630,000 shares) in issue during the

year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the year
ended 31st December 2002 is based on the consolidated
profit attributable to shareholders of approximately
HK$229,082,000 (2001: HK$120,965,000) and the diluted
weighted average number of approximately 1,002,561,000
shares (2001: 1,001,100,000 shares) in issue after adjusting
for the potential dilutive effect in respect of outstanding

employee share options.
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#49229,082,0008 L (ZEE—F :
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14. PROPERTIES AND EQUIPMENT

31st December

2002

2T -F+=-RA=+—H

14. YEKRE

Movements in properties and equipment (consolidated)

Notes to the Accounts

ik B MY &E

MERRENEE () B

were:
2002 2001
itk ZTTF
Leasehold Furniture
land and office Motor
and buildings equipment vehicles Total Total
HELH HRR
REF YN RE L ]
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TERT TET TET THET
Cost KAE
Beginning of year F1 7,004 10,882 16,950 34,836 23,481
Additions g - 7,326 7,961 15,287 11,407
Disposals HE - (104) - (104) (52)
End of year FH 7,004 18,104 24,911 50,019 34,836
Accumulated depreciation 2t E
Beginning of year =) 906 5,048 6,375 12,329 8,988
Charge for the year AEZHE 139 2,434 3,247 5,820 3,355
Disposals e - (30) - (30) 14)
End of year FiR 1,045 7,452 9,622 18,119 12,329
Net book value EEFE
End of year Fi 5,959 10,652 15,289 31,900 22,507
Beginning of year F4 6,098 5,834 10,575 22,507 14,493

The leasehold land and buildings are located in Hong Kong

and are held under medium-term leases of between 10 to

50 years.

HE L MEF IR EE RRENF10

FESOFMNFHENRE °
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Movements of investment properties (consolidated) were:

15. REM=E

REMENEE () B

2002 2001

—EE-F —ET—F

HK$’000 HK$’'000

TET FHET

Beginning of year FH) 1,710,000 1,673,000
Transfer from properties under development B8 5 {ER EIIRE

for long-term investment 2R 402,709 21,965

Surplus on revaluation E Pl 512,891 15,035

End of year F4R 2,625,600 1,710,000

All investment properties are located in mainland China and
are held under land use rights expiring from 2067 through
2072. All investment properties were revalued as at 31st
December 2002 by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited,
independent qualified valuers, on an open market value
basis, with the related surplus, net of provision for mainland
China land appreciation tax, recorded as investment property
revaluation reserve.

As at 31st December 2002, approximately
HK$1,100,899,000 (2001: HK$973,466,000) of the
investment properties were pledged as collateral for the
Group’s banking facilities (see Note 43(a)). In addition, as at
31st December 2002, approximately HK$173,312,000
(2001: HK$82,611,000) and none (2001: HK$19,081,000)
of the investment properties were pledged as collateral for
bank loans borrowed by a jointly controlled entity and a
related company, respectively (see Note 3(d)).
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The Group leases out certain investment properties under
operating leases, for an initial period of one to twenty years,

31st December 2002 | —EE-_F+_-A=+—H
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15. REY= ()

ik B MY &E

AEERBEEHOLBETREDE - 0
WEBA—E- 15 EERBEENER

with an option to renew on renegotiated terms. None of the EEREL - SEAMERITESIAES - B

leases includes contingent rentals. During the year ended
31st December 2002, the gross rental income from
investment properties amounted to approximately
HK$17,599,000 (2001: HK$2,896,000). As at 31st

HE-TTZ-_F+-A=+—HIHFERXN "
REFREYENE S BEELA17,599,000/%
T (ZZEZ—F : 2,806,00087T) c R=Z
TF+A=+—08  AEERERAH

December 2002, the Group’s future rental income under A RN ARRBSBALAT
non-cancellable operating leases was as follows:

2002 2001
—EZ-F T —F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FT
Not later than one year —FR 23,460 3,439
Later than one year and not —ZERFA

later than five years 93,766 13,755
Later than five years AF% 128,309 47,057
245,535 64,251
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16. RIGHTS TO RECEIVE RENTAL INCOME

The Group has rights to receive rental income for 15 years
up to 2017 in respect of certain properties developed by
the Group for the benefit of third parties in Beijing, mainland
China.

Movements (consolidated) were:

16. UWriH#E

AEBEEEREBEE _T—tF I +HFH
A AKERFEIERAF=ERRNE
THREBHEE -

£ (154) 0T :

2002 2001

—BB=F —TT—F

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FERT FHET

Beginning of year F4) - -

Additions #ig 49,627 -

Amortisation for the year FNEEH (1,103) -

End of year F 48,524 =
During the year ended 31st December 2002, the gross rental RBE_ZEZE_F+_A=1+—HILFE
income relating to these properties amounted to W FHEEMECHSBRABELY

approximately HK$815,000 (2001 Nil). 815,000 L (=TT —F : §)
17. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR LONG- 17. BERBMBREZRETYE

TERM INVESTMENT

Movements of properties under development for long-term
investment (consolidated) are:

FERMREZBERTYEED (RE) 10

T

2002 2001

s —FTF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Beginning of year F4] 716,940 308,032
Additions g 832,318 430,873
Transfer to investment properties BRI EYH (402,709) (21,965)
End of year FR 1,146,549 716,940
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18.

31st December 2002

2T -F+=-RA=+—H

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR LONG-
TERM INVESTMENT (continued)

All properties under development for long-term investment
are located in mainland China. As at 31st December 2002,
properties under development for long-term investment of
approximately HK$1,137,387,000 (2001: HK$703,871,000)
were held under land use rights expiring from 2067 through
2072, whilst the remaining balance of approximately
HK$9,162,000 (2001: HK$13,069,000) was related to
projects located on land for which the Group was in the
process of applying for formal land use rights.

As at 31st December 2002, approximately HK$70,112,000
(2001: HK$67,713,000) and approximately
HK$175,763,000 (2001: HK$174,033,000) of properties
under development for long-term investment were pledged
as collateral for the Group’s banking facilities (see Note 43(b))
and bank loans borrowed by a jointly controlled entity (see
Note 3(d)) respectively .

LAND PENDING DEVELOPMENT

Land pending development is located in mainland China.
As at 31st December 2002, land pending development of
approximately HK$120,731,000 (2001: HK$80,803,000)
was held under land use rights expiring from 2067 through
2072, whilst the remaining balance of approximately
HK$190,727,000 (2001: HK$8,253,000) was related to land
acquired during the year, which the Group was in the process
of applying for formal land use rights.

As at 31st December 2002, approximately HK$82,995,000
(2001: HK$80,803,000) of the land pending development
was pledged as collateral for the Group’s banking facilities
(see Note 43(c)).

17.

18.
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FERMBREZRRTYE (B

FIERERIMRE 2 BEHR YT E
AE - RZZE-_F+_-_A=+—H0 %
1,137,387,0008 L (=& —F :
703,871,000/ 7T) KIFER AR E 2 R+
MERBHR SNt FE2 T —FHHEE
W) T HE R o E#R499,162,000/%8
JT(ZZZT—F : 13,069,000/ 7T) By HI 8!
AR E B R ER T FE AR it
J:o

RZZEZF+=ZA=+—H " &
70,112,000 7T (ZEZ—4 : 67,713,000
77T) K 49175,763,0008 7T (Z T T —F -
174,033,000/ 7T) 2 FHEREIIRE 2 ERH
MEDEFERAER ZRITEE (R
43(b) Rk —EHFZEHEE 2 RITEE 2K
e (RFFFES()) °

FERLH

FERIMAUNPBEAE HR_TT_F1
—A=+—8" mmom1mm®ﬂ_??
—4% : 80,803,000/8 7T) WIfF 3R TR IE
&:?ﬁtié:?t:i%%@ﬁ%im
FRERAE - E£:49190,727,0008 7L (=F
T —4F : 8,253,000/ 7T) MAFE R T Al
RAEBEEFABANIEFERBIERLHE
AERN LT E -

R-—Z2F-4%+-A=+—8 &
82,995,000/ T (ZZFZ—4 : 80,803,000
BT 2 BRI DR EA SR
B2 AR (R MEE43() -
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19. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES 19. AKB A TWRE
In the Company’s balance sheet, investment in subsidiaries RAARWEERERA - RITBARRIE
consisted of: BT
2002 2001
—EBE-F e
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FiBT
Unlisted shares, at cost JE LAY - KA 74,900 74,900
Due from subsidiaries NG e 667,886 663,482
742,786 738,382
The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, non- FEUP B A RFIAAEER - 28 REAR
interest bearing and not repayable within one year. —FNEE -
The underlying value of investment in subsidiaries was, in ARAREERE  RHB R RMIREREE
the opinion of the Company’s Directors, not less than its BEL MR _EZ_F+-A=1+—H0H
carrying value as at 31st December 2002. BREE ©
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19. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 19. RKE A BNRE (&)

R=FE-F+=A=+—BHHBAT

Details of the subsidiaries as at 31st December 2002 are

as follows: BT -
Percentage of equity
Place of incorporation  Issued and fully interest attributable
Name of company and operations paid capital to the Group Principal activity
AR IR BETR REBEE
ARER EENY BRRE RERDL TERH
Directly Indirectly
Ef M
Hopson Development International Limited British Virgin Islands US$2,000 100% - Investment holding
ALEREBARAR AERAES 2,000% 7T RERR
Archibald Properties Limited British Virgin Islands Us$2 = 100% Investment holding
EEERERDA ABRUES 22X RERR
Beijing Hopson Beifang Real Estate mainland China US$1,811,804 = 70% Property development
Development Limited mEARE  1811804FT NEEE
FREENFEHEREERAR
Beijing Hopson Lu Zhou Real Estate mainland China  Rmbb40,500,000 - 70% Property development
Development Limited B ARE AEE NEEE
EREEENEHEREBRAR 40,500,007
Beijing Hopson Yuding Real Estate mainland China US$3,600,000 = 70% Property development
Development Limited mEARE  3,600,0005T NEEE
EREERREHEREBRAR
Ever New Properties Limited Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary = 100% Investment holding and
EHEXERAR A% HK$3 non-voting = 100% property investment
deferred shares () REBBRENERE
2B ERR
SETERTE
ETR()
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19. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 19. AME A RWRE (F)
Percentage of equity
Place of incorporation  Issued and fully interest attributable
Name of company and operations paid capital to the Group Principal activity
EMAILR BEAR REEER
NEEH 2EY BRRE RERAL TEEH
Directly Indirectly
HE GE3
Funland Properties Limited British Virgin Islands Us$2 = 100% Inactive
FREZARRA EERLES 2% faes s
Galloping Properties Limited British Virgin Islands Us$2 - 100% Inactive
BUERRRAA RERNES 2XTT TEEK
Guangdong Esteem Property mainland China HK$2,000,000 - 90% Property management
Senvices Limited REAEE  2,000,0008T NRER
BRESNERBEARAR
Guangdong Hopson Lejing mainland China ~ Rmb54,292,372 - 53.5% Property development
Real Estate Limited hEIARE ARE MERR
BRAELSEHETRAA 54,202,3727T
Guangdong Hopson Minghui mainland China ~ Rmb41,532,852 - 90% Property development
Real Estate Limited AR ARE MEER
BRAEREFHERRAF 41,532,8527T
Guangdong Hopson Yuehua mainland China ~ Rmb24,349,231 - 90% Property development
Real Estate Limited REIARE ARE MERR
BRAEHERHERRAR 24,349,2317T
Guangdong Huajingxincheng mainland China ~ Rmb93,500,018 = 90% Property development
Real Estate Limited HEIARE ARE MEER
BRERTHEHEERAR 93,500,087
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19. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 19. AME A AR E (F)
Percentage of equity
Place of incorporation  Issued and fully interest attributable
Name of company and operations paid capital to the Group Principal activity
EMAILR BEAR REEER
LS EENE BRRE RERDL TEEH
Directly Indirectly
B GE3

Guangdong Huanan New City mainland China  Rmb162,378,578 - 60% Property development

Real Estate Limited hEIARE ARE MEER
BREMIMIBHERRAA 162,378,578TC

Guangdong Huanan Real Estate Limited mainland China  Rmb48,046,856 = 70% Property development

EREBEHERRAR REIKEE ARE MEER
48,046,8567T

Guangdong Jinan Real Estate Limited mainland China  Rmb65,084,340 = 90% Property development

EREBRHERRAR REIKEE ARH MELR
65,084,3407T

Guangdong New Tai An Real Estate Limited mainland China Rmb2,872,587 = 52% Property development

BRARZEHERRAR N3 ARH MEER
2,872,5877L

Guang Zhou Hopson Cuiiing Real Estate Limited mainland China ~ Rmb16,330,000 - 97% Property development

BMa R REHERRAR N3 ARE MEER
16,330,0007T

Guangzhou Hopson Dongyu Real Estate Limited mainland China ~ Rmb25,194,175 100% Property development
BMa 4t RFRHERRAR REIKHE ARE NRER
25,194,1757C

Guangzhou Hopson Junjing Real Estate Limited mainland China ~ Rmb72,844,652 95% Property development
BMa 4R REHERRAR RELKHE ARE NRER
72,844,6527T
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19. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

19.

RETE QT NRE (8

Percentage of equity
Place of incorporation  Issued and fully interest attributable
Name of company and operations paid capital to the Group Principal activity
EMAILR BEAR REBEE
NEEH EENY BRRE RERAL TEEH
Directly Indirectly
HE 3

Guangzhou Hopson Keji Garden Real Estate Limited ~ mainland China  Rmb133,340,000 - 95% Property development

BMa B REEERAR REIKEE ARE NRER
133,340,0007C

Guangzhou Hopson Qinghui Real Estate Limited mainland China ~ Rmb42,287,624 - 100% Property development

BlatrEREERAR REIKHE ARE MELR
42,287,624

Guangzhou Hopson Qingyuan Water mainland China ~ Rmb2,000,000 = 93% Inactive

Supply Limited BN ARE TEXH
BMa s REkERAR 2,000,007

Guangzhou Hopson Yihui Real Estate Limited mainland China  Rmb131,420,019 = 100% Property development

EMNEERERHEERAR REKHE ARE NRER
131,420,0197C

Guangzhou Hopson Xingjing Business mainland China Rmb500,000 = 85.95% Provision of clubhouse

Senvices Limited hEIARE AR and residlential sevices

BMatERBKARAR 500,0007C RtemRETRE

Guangzhou Hopson Yijing Real Estate Limited mainland China  Rmb53,059,606 = 60% Property development

ENGERSEHERRAR REIKHE ARE NRER
53,059,6067C

Guangzhou Hopson Yujing Real Estate Limited mainland China ~ Rmb23,117,860 = 70% Property development

ENGERSEHERRAR BN = NEER
23,117,8607T
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19. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 19. AME A AR E (F)
Percentage of equity
Place of incorporation  Issued and fully interest attributable
Name of company and operations paid capital to the Group Principal activity
EMAILR BEAR REEER
LS EENE BRRE RERDL TEEH
Directly Indirectly
B GE3
Guangzhou Xinhua Information Development Limited  mainland China Rmb100,000 - 49.5% (il Newspaper publishing
BMFEERAERBRAR REIKEE ARE BELR
100,0007T
Guangzhou Yijing Arts and Culture Company Limited  mainland China Rmb500,000 - 49.5% (il Organisation of artistic
BMES EMEEERAA hEARE ARE and cultural activities
500,007 SHBMURED
Hopeson Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary = 100% Investment holding
REREBRAT &F HK$10,000 - 100% REAR
non-voting
deferred shares (j
2B ERR
10,0008 TR FE
ETHR()
Hopson Development (Consultants) Limited British Virgin Islands Us$2 - 100% Provision of property
RERREER) ERAR RBRIHS 2XTT design advisory services
REMER AR
Hopson Development (Properties) Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 = 100% Property investment
2EEIR (BX) BRAR Bk 10,000/ MERE
Hopson E-Commerce Limited British Virgin Islands USS$1 = 100% Inactive
AEBTHEARAA AERAES E TEEK
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19. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 19. RKE A BHNRE (&)

Percentage of equity
Place of incorporation  Issued and fully interest attributable
Name of company and operations paid capital to the Group Principal activity
EMAILR BEAR REBEE
NEEH EENY BRRE RERAL TEEH
Directly Indirectly
HE 3

Hopson (Guangzhou) Industries Limited mainland China - - 100% Inactive
2EEMEXARAA AR TEXHK
Hopson Industries (Shenzhen) Limited mainland China US$1,000,000 - 100% Inactive
AEEX (R BRAT PEAE  1,000000%T EEEK
Hopson Infrastructure (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100% Inactive
AEER(BV)ERAT ERRLES %7 TEXHK
Hopson Properties (China) Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100% Investment holding
REREAEHEBRAT AERAES (E REER
Nambour Properties Limited British Virgin Islands Us$2 = 100% Investment holding
HREXARAA ERRLES 2T RERR
Outward Expanse Investments Limited British Virgin Islands Us$2 - 100% Investment holding
BARERRAT AERAES 2XTT REER
Pomeroy Properties Limited British Virgin Islands Us$2 = 100% Investment holding
AREXARRA ERRLES 2T RERR
Shanghai Hopson Property Development mainland China US$5,011,100 - 100% Property development

Company Limited HERE  5011,100%T NEEE

LR ERHERRARAA
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19. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 19. AME A AR E (F)
Percentage of equity
Place of incorporation  Issued and fully interest attributable
Name of company and operations paid capital to the Group Principal activity
EMAILR BEAR REEER
LS EEBE BRRE RERDL TEEH
Directly Indirectly
B GE3
Solawide Properties Limited British Virgin Islands Us$2 - 100% Investment holding
SREXARRA ARRLES 22X RERR
Sound Zone Properties Limited British Virgin Islands Us$2 - 100% Investment holding
HEEXARAA RERNHS 2ETT REER
Sun Yick Properties Limited British Virgin Islands Us$2 = 100% Investment holding
HREXARRA ERRLES 2T RERR
Tianjin Hopson Zhujiang Real Estate mainland China - = 70% Property development
Development Limited B ARE NEEE

RERERIEHEREERAR

Timbercrest Properties Limited British Virgin Islands Us$2 = 100% Investment holding
AEERARAT REBRUES e REZR
Tumen Properties Limited British Virgin Islands Us$2 = 100% Investment holding
HREXARAT ABRUES ZT RERK
World Sense Industries Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100% Investment holding
ELEXERAA 3 10,0007 REER
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19. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Notes —

i, The non-voting deferred shares have no voting rights, are not entitled
to any dividend, and are not entitled to distributions upon winding up
unless a sum of HK$100,000,000,000,000 has been distributed to
the holders of the ordinary shares and thereafter one-half of the assets

is distributable to holders of the non-voting deferred shares.

ii. These are subsidiaries as the Group’s interests in these companies are
held through subsidiaries which in turn hold more than 50% of the
issued voting share capital of these companies and the Group has the

power to govern the financial and operating policies of these companies.

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue at any
time during the year ended 31st December 2002.
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M E—

ZEEREEBRTERY|IRERE - TEIKE
MRS RNBEREIRTEEMS IR - BRI
ARAREBRZBEADES R —ZERH
100,000,000,000,0007 TTHIFRIE 18 B EMRTE
BB AT DR TR EBETROFA A °

i.  ERAEEREERRNERTEBIE AR
B MZEMBRARRNALEARNAREED
BITIARE0% A E R AL BB REE L E QAN
B R EERR - B ERRGRANEE 2 M

AT -

REZE T F+-_A=+—HILFERK
TR - SHBARMEM A2 BITEE
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BREME
20. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES 20. REEERTZIRE
Investment in unlisted associates (consolidated) consisted RIELEMEERR 2I8E UrE) B
of:
2002 2001
—EBECF T —5F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FBT
Share of net (liabilities)/assets EiLF (AR BE (1,145) 1,888
Due from associates JE st 5 A B SRR 7,924 525
6,779 2,413
Less: Provision for amount due from B U — A A R (6,000) -
an associate IR B
779 2,413
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20. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 20.

The amounts due from associates are unsecured, non-

interest bearing and not repayable within one year.
The underlying value of investment in associates was, in
the opinion of the Company’s Directors, not less than its

carrying value as at 31st December 2002.

Details of the associates as at 31st December 2002 are as

REBERF2RE (8

FENCE & X AR - 8 REAR
—EWE
ARARMEEFRR  RBERRNRENERE
BEITIR_FFZ_F+_A=1t—HK
BRE(E -

R-ZBZ_F+-A=+—HABEQFAZH

follows: ER :
Percentage of equity
Place of incorporation  Issued and fully interest attributable
Name of company and operations paid capital to the Group Principal activity
EMAILR BEAR REBEE
NEEH EENY BRRE RERAL TEEH
Directly ~Indirectly
HE 3
Tonking International Limited Hong Kong HK$10 = 30% Property investment
FEERERAR &F 1087 MERE
Guangdong Huasheng Cultural mainland China Rmb5,000,000 - 24% Inactive
Development Company Limited R ARE NEE LSS
BREFHE X ERERAR 5,000,0007C

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED 44 £ & % @ 47 &2 4]



21.

31st December 2002 | —EZE-_F+_-_A=+—H

INVESTMENT IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY

Investment in an unlisted jointly controlled entity
(consolidated) consisted of:

21. R—EHEEZEHE

Notes to the Accounts

ik B MY &E

BzRE

RIELMARZEFIERZINE RE) B

2002 2001

—EE_F —EE—F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET

Share of net assets at acquisition JE(EIEBRE R EE 21,000 21,000
Share of undistributed post-acquisition results FE{E 2k 7 BC Uk 518 48 55,412 8,431
76,412 29,431

Goodwill less accumulated amortisation GBS 9,000 9,000
85,412 38,431

Investment in a jointly controlled entity represents an
investment in a contractual joint venture, Guangzhou
Zhujiang Qiaodao Real Estate Limited (“GZQREL”). GZQREL
is established in mainland China with an operating period
of 20 years up to January 2018 to develop properties located
in Guangzhou, Guangdong Province, mainland China. Under
the joint venture agreement, the Group is required to
contribute 57.14% of the capital of GZQREL and is entitled
to one-third of the voting power in GZQREL. It is entitled to
share 40% of the profit of GZQREL but has to assume
57.14% of any losses of GZQREL, and is entitled to a
distribution of 40% of GZQREL's assets upon expiry of the

operating period.

The underlying value of the investment in a jointly controlled
entity was, in the opinion of the Company’s Directors, not

less than its carrying value as at 31st December 2002.

R—EHEEIEFIER 2 IRE T RNERRE
M%i%%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ al ([f&#]) 21 &
(BEA—HEHNEELRHE) - BERFREAKR
BERKSL - (CEHIE T —)\F— ALt - B
20%F « HEE BB ARBA N R BIAREE
REEMZUE - REBESECERR &%
%gﬁﬁﬁ%ZEWM%ﬁﬁ&ﬁ%%ﬁ
BER =D —IEEH - NEBNBREIEEE
ZAO%EMvﬁM%?ﬁ%%EZ
57.14% - LA R BN K& HEmEED
B#P40% 2 BE °

AATEERS - N —RIEREHEE R
A7 BEBETOR_BE_F+-A=+
— B 2 BREE -
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22. INVESTMENT IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ASSETS

Certain subsidiaries of the Group entered into a jointly
controlled assets arrangement with Guangzhou Zhuguang
Real Estate Development Company Limited, an independent
third party, under which each of the Group and Guangzhou
Zhuguang Real Estate Development Company Limited
contributed land and other assets for the development of
properties located in Guangzhou, Guangdong Province,
mainland China.

As at 31st December 2001, the Group had a 95.3%
participating interest in these jointly controlled assets. During
the year ended 31st December 2002, the Group’s
participating interest in these jointly controlled assets was
increased from 95.3% to 95.5%.

Details of the aggregate amount of the assets and liabilities
recognised in the consolidated accounts in respect of the

Group’s interest in jointly controlled assets arrangement were

22. REREHEEZRE

AEEETHEAR R —RBLE =T EM
RN EHERBERRA BRI —IA KRS
BEZH TFJit C RNEE REMNIR A HE
FBEERAFS BN D EAEERSE
%d‘l‘lZ%%Tmf/\iim&ﬁ1mﬁ§ °

ET—F+_A=1+—8 ~EE%H
L LRI B EE 2 95.3% 2 iR o AL
ZE_HF+_A=t+—BHLFER &

ZEAFAZEFEEC2EEGR
95.3%3E IN1ZE95.5% °

HAREBNHEIESEELHE 2 R
&HRE EEEM%%T%&EEZ%@@%E%’\% ZZD
T

as follows:
2002 2001
—EEF —FET—F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TET FH&T
Assets BE 700,289 640,312
Liabilities BE 402,267 393,215
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23. GOODWILL 23. HE
Goodwill (consolidated) consisted of: e (ke) B
2002 2001
—BECF —ET—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Cost RAE 10,180 8,234
Less: Accumulated amortisation o BT (4,072) (1,647)
Net book value BREFEE 6,108 6,587
Movements of goodwill (consolidated) were: B 2 & 8) (k&) 10T
2002 2001
—2ECH it
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Beginning of year F4 6,587 8,234
Addition i 1,946 -
Less: Amortisation during the year o FEEEE (2,425) (1,647)
End of year FR 6,108 6,587

Goodwill, arisen from investment in jointly controlled assets,

represents the excess of contributions made by the Group

for a property development project located in Guangzhou,

Guangdong Province, mainland China over the Group’s

percentage interest in this property development project (see

Note 22).

RIFHEHEE 2 IR EPTES 2 BB TIHEA
SEFURPBEAREEREEMNZMEER
BB MR AZ BEBHAEER I IR EE
RIAR < EiaHER 2 8B 1n (REE22) -
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24. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE 24, THEECRRERYE
Properties under development for sale (consolidated) AHEEZERTPYE GE) BIE

consisted of:

2002 2001
—EBE-F e
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
At cost AR 2,924,973 2,065,872
Add: Attributable profits on pre-sold properties Al : FB&E Y3 (55 T 152,106 209,766
3,077,079 2,275,638
Less: Sale instalments and deposits o B RS S
received/receivable N RkEe (386,413) (523,839)
2,690,666 1,751,799
Analysis of cost of properties under development for sale AR E 2 BERPYIEZKAN GRE) TR
(consolidated) is as follows: S 8
2002 2001
s —FTF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F#ET FET
Land cost TR AR 1,880,963 942,344
Construction expenditures RS 1,008,840 1,086,077
Borrowing costs capitalised* B EAnEaEm A" 35,170 37,451
2,924,973 2,065,872
Note — BiaE—
* The average interest rate of borrowing costs capitalised for the year 1 BHEZEE-F+-A=T+—HLFEREFTEARN
ended 31st December 2002 was approximately 6.0% per annum (2001: BB A Z FHFIELGF6.0% (ZTT—F :
6.4% per annum). FFE6.4%) °
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PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE

(continued)

All properties under development for sale are located in
mainland China. As at 31st December 2002, properties
under development for sale of approximately
HK$2,610,624,000 (2001: HK$1,637,625,000) were held
under land use rights expiring from 2067 through 2072,
whilst the remaining balance of approximately
HK$80,042,000 (2001: HK$114,174,000) was related to
projects located on land for which the Group was in the
process of applying for formal land use rights, a majority of
which the Group has obtained formal land use rights
subsequent to year-end.

As at 31st December 2002, approximately HK$237,026,000
(2001: HK$222,798,000) of the properties under
development for sale were pledged as collateral for the
Group’s banking facilities (see Note 43(d)).

COMPLETED PROPERTIES FOR SALE

All completed properties for sale are located in mainland
China and are held under land use rights expiring from 2067
through 2072.

As at 31st December 2002, approximately HK$203,299,000
(2001: HK$223,754,000) of the completed properties for
sale were pledged as collateral for the Group’s banking
facilities (see Note 43(g)). In addition, as at 31st December
2002, approximately HK$66,390,000 (2001:
HK$89,719,000) and approximately HK$4,909,000 (2001:
Nil) of the completed properties for sale were pledged as
collateral for the bank loans borrowed by a related company

and a jointly controlled entity, respectively (see Note 3(d)).

24,

25.
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AHEEZERPYE (&)

SEAIHEE 2 BRPYEHURFREKX
BEoe RZZEE=_F+=-A=+—8 -
#492,610,624,000B L (=T —F :
1,637,625,000/47T) A] & 2 ZHRF Y
BER—ZEAEFE_T+-_FHHEERZ
THEARERE o HE24980,042,0004 7T

“ZT 4 1 114,174,000/ 7T) 2 WL
MAREEIEERBER T FEREZ T
L BRRZEAREERNFLEBEDIUS
ER LA -

R-ZEZE-_F+-A=1+—8  §tHeE>
R E49237,026,0008 T (T Z —
F 1 222,798,000/ 7T) B X IR EAR S EER
TEEZEMR (RME43() °

AHHEZCERYHE

2R E 2B ERRGRN A BIARE
ERBER TR FE T _FHREER
Z I RERA

RZEBEE_FE+-_A=+—8 4
208,299,000 L (=T —F
223,754,000 7T) 2 Al & 2 B &K Y
XEHEATERRITEEZ2EAR (R
Bi3E43() ° Hh R_ZTZE_F+_-_A=
+—8 - #966,390,000/ 70 (=TT —4F :
89,719,000/ 7T) & 494,909,000/ T (= F
T—F @\ 2 HEERERYMEE S5
HIMEA—HBEAR R —MHEREHEE
ZIRITER 2 B (RHTEES() °
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26. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 26. FEUWERTX
Consideration in respect of properties sold is generally EHEMELRE—MEREILEEHZ N
payable by the purchasers within six months subsequent BANBEAFX - HEMHE RS RMEE
to the execution of the sale and purchase agreements. BE—WRERBEFPZAEN -

Rentals in respect of leased properties and property
management fees are generally payable in advance by the
tenants on monthly basis.

Aging analysis of accounts receivable (consolidated) was: FEWERRR (5rE) ZBRECHATIAT
2002 2001
—2T-F —ET—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#&T T
0 to 3 months 0Z31E A 117,242 268,135
3 to 6 months 3Z6{EAH 904 1,224
6 to 9 months 62 9fE A 38 1,163
9 to 12 months 9Z=121A A 152 736
Over 12 months B:E1218 A 2,709 5,909
121,045 277,167
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27. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER CURRENT

ASSETS

31st December 2002 | —EE-_F+_-A=+—H

Prepayments, deposits and other current assets consisted

of:

Notes to the Accounts

iR B M EE

27. ANFNE - RERAMRBDEE

BNFOR - REREMRBEERE

Consolidated Company
=E YN
2002 2001 2002 2001
BB _TT-F CZBBZE _"TT-F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TEx TET FET
Prepayment for acquisition Wb+ 3ty 2 B

of land* IR 42,925 101,424 - -
Prepaid construction expenditures BRRERY 48,201 36,471 - =
Utility and other deposits INEE G ks 11,692 8,557 - =
Others Hity 14,942 10,332 130 1,803
117,760 156,784 130 1,803

Note — B 5 —

This represents advances made to a minority shareholder of the

Company’s subsidiary for acquisition of land, which will be injected

into the subsidiary upon the issuance of land use right certificates.

Y WEBIRIE LI R AR B DBARREL 2 B
A BB L AR RERE AL

BAE] e
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28. INVESTMENT IN SECURITIES

Investment in securities (consolidated) consisted of:

28.

HERE

EFRE (RE) B

2002 2001

—BECF —TT—F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FEx FET

Shares listed in Hong Kong, at cost BELETRD - ZRE 8,386 8,386
Less: Adjustment to quoted market value W RIS R ERARE (5,559) (4,154)
Quoted market value of listed shares RS 2 IS RE 2,827 4,232

29. BANK DEPOSITS

As at 31st December 2002, the Group’s bank deposits of
approximately HK$232,081,000 (2001: HK$85,221,000)
and none (2001: HK$25,000,000) were pledged as collateral
for the Group’s banking facilities (see Note 43(f)) and a bank
loan borrowed by a jointly controlled entity, respectively. In
addition, the Group’s bank deposits of approximately
HK$48,953,000 (2001: HK$74,911,000) were held by
certain banks in escrow pending finalisation of mortgage
facilities granted by the banks to buyers of the Group’s
properties.

30. SHORT-TERM BANK LOANS
Short-term bank loans bear interest at 4.8% to 6.4% per

annum (2001: 5.5% to 6.8% per annum). Refer to Note 43
for details of collateral.
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31. LONG-TERM BANK LOANS 31. REBITER
Long-term bank loans (consolidated) consisted of: REBRITERERE) B
2002 2001
—BECF —ET—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FHET
Amounts repayable AR T EREEE 2 5RI8
— within one year ——FR 375,527 164,283
— within one to two years ——ZEWMFN 340,430 311,170
— within two to three years —WME=FNRN 482,168 171,462
1,198,125 646,915
Less: Amount due within one year B mENAEET
included under current liabilities —FRE|H 2 KIE (375,527) (164,283)
822,598 482,632
Long-term bank loans bear interest at approximately 5.5% RHRITETIRFFEL5.5%F6.8% (=
to 6.8% per annum (2001: 6.4% per annum). Refer to Note TE—F  FREE6.4%)5TE o BHmEF
43 for details of collateral. BB 2 RMIEE43 -
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32. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 32. FE(TERRX
Aging analysis of accounts payable (consolidated) was: JERBRR (R e) 2 BREeDATLAT -
2002 2001
—BECF —TT—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
0 to 3 months 0% 31 A 714,541 147,844
Approximately HK$570,039,000 (2001: HK$94,340,000) of MYFEREE RN —BEEAR BN A
accounts payable was due to a related company in respect 570,039,000 T (=T —F
of property construction fees (see Note 3(b)). 94,340,000%7T) (RKIEE3(0)) °
33. TAXATION PAYABLE 33. EBiE
Taxation payable (consolidated) consisted of: JERBIIE (R E) B -
2002 2001
—BECF —EE—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Hong Kong profits tax BEANFH 4,152 1,060
Mainland China enterprise income tax FR B R BE (S FTEHR 92,996 11,365
Mainland China land appreciation tax FR B K B £ b3 (E 48,996 13,982
Mainland China business tax R K R R 26,159 18,950
172,303 45,357
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34. DEFERRED TAXATION 34. LR IE
Movements in deferred taxation (consolidated) were: RERIE 2 88) (55 &) FHIBWT -
2002 2001
—EBCF b S
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FA&T
Beginning of year F4) 671,964 666,266
Provision relating to revaluation surpluses KEMFEE GRS
of investment properties 153,867 4,511
Provision for other timing differences, net ELh B = BB T RR (35,435) 1,187
End of year F 790,396 671,964
Deferred taxation represents the taxation effect of the RIERIBIEA TR EMELS 2 RIBTE
following timing differences:
2002 2001
t 2 St 2 —ETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FA&T
Revaluation surpluses of WEMFEEGRLR
investment properties 479,095 325,228
Timing differences arising from the PR BE A B rp B K RE
different bases in reporting revenue MIHEE TR 2 WA
with mainland China tax authorities FRREAES| Bz E 311,301 346,736
790,396 671,964
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35. SHARE CAPITAL 35. A
2002 2001
—EEC-R “TT—F
Number Nominal Number Nominal
of shares value of shares value
RHEE HE RinEE HE
’000 HK$’000 ‘000 HK$'000
TR FTET T FHT
Authorised- AT —
Ordinary shares of BREECAET
HK$0.1 each 2B 2,000,000 200,000 2,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid- EBETRAE -
Ordinary shares of BREECAET
HK$0.1 each ik
Beginning of year F] 1,002,000 100,200 1,000,000 100,000
Issued upon exercise R17{E1E B BAE
of employee share options [IE:Grd ) - - 2,000 200
End of year FIR 1,002,000 100,200 1,002,000 100,200
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36. EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTIONS

Effective from November 2002, the Company has adopted
a new employee share option scheme, under which it may
grant options to employees (including executive directors
of the Company) to subscribe for shares in the Company,
subject to a maximum of 30% of the nominal value of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to time
excluding for this purpose any shares issued on the exercise
of options. The exercise price will be determined by the
Company’s board of directors and shall at least be the
highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares on
the date of grant of the options, (i) an average closing price
of the Company’s shares for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the options, and
(i) the nominal value of the Company’s shares of HK$0.1
each. As at 31st December 2002, no employee share
options have been granted under this new share option
scheme, and there were outstanding options granted under
an old share option scheme to subscribe for an aggregate
of 5,000,000 shares of the Company. All options granted
under the old share option scheme will continue to be valid
and exercisable in accordance with the rules of the old share
option scheme.
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36. EEBRE

H-TZT-F+— A - ARREHEMN—E
e BREARERT 8 - Bt - AARIRAER
(BREARATMITES) K HBAREAREAR
RNRIRG « B TMEHRAARR R TR E 2
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AT TR E M ETT 2 R - TTEEKRH
RAREZSET HBETORTII=52
=& (AARRMREBRERL AR
Wi fE ()R EEEIER L B BRI R ER
SBARRNRRMG 2 FHRTE ki)~ A
IR EE (BR0.1EBT) - RZTT_F
TZA=1+—8 ' SERR BRI E
RiE BERE - MERIFERREEIR
& HATFREE5,000,0000% A& 2~ Bl i) 2 B8
R ARTTIE - IRIREBRIEASIRE 22
EPRE R RS AR B A R AT AR IR EE R AR R T 2
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36. EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 36. EEBRE (@)

NEE_ZEZ-_F+-_A=1+—HILFER

Movements of employee share options under the old share

option scheme during the year ended 31st December 2002 ERRETSCEEEREZHOT ¢
were:
Number of share options
BREHE
Exercise Beginning Granted Exercised
Date of grant Exercise period price of year during the year during the year End of year
REAH Gy TEE 4 ERELH ERfTE 38
'000 '000 '000 '000
T Tk T T
14th July 1998 14th July 1998 to 13th July 2003 HK$1.49 2,000 - - 2,000
—WNAN\ELATEA —MNELRTRAZE 1.49%7T
ZEZ=EtAT=A
14th July 1999 14th July 1999 to 13th July 2004 HK$1.00 1,000 - - 1,000
—NNFLATEA —NWANELATEAZE 1.0087T
“EINELAT=A
30th April 2002 30th April 2002 to 29th April 2007 HK$1.17 - 1,000 - 1,000
“ETCEMA=TH “ZT_FMA=THE 1ATET
e ) ey i =
18th September 2002 18th September 2002 to
17th September 2007 HK$1.16 - 1,000 - 1,000
ZEE-FENAT\A ZZT-ENAT\BE 11687
“ETHEAATA
3,000 2,000 - 5,000
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37. RESERVES

Movements are:

31st December 2002

2T -F+=-RA=+—H

37. f#fE

BEIT :

P
2
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Consolidated Company
e A7
2002 2001 2002 2001
S -3 —ZEZ-F “BBC-F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TR THT TExT THEL
Retained profits RERA
Beginning of year =) 718,706 635,133 2,728 9,269
Profit attributable to shareholders R E (A 229,082 120,965 43,960 23,509
Transfer to general reserve fund* R RREED (17,380) (7,342) - =
Proposed dividends R
- interim dividend —HhHRS (20,040) (10,010) (20,040) (10,010
~ final dividend —-KBRE (20,040) (20,040) (20,040) (20,040)
End of year Fi8 890,328 718,706 6,608 2,728
Share premium R RE
Beginning of year =) 618,849 617,692 618,849 617,692
Exercise of share options TR - 1,160 - 1,160
Share issue expenses BinETEH - @) = ()
End of year FiR 618,849 618,849 618,849 618,849
Investment property revaluation reserve  REYEE {1
Beginning of year F4) 758,866 748,342 - =
Surplus on revaluation of investment BHREYEESE
properties, net of mainland ZBER  HIBRA
China land appreciation tax REET I ER 359,024 10,524 - -
End of year Fi8 1,117,890 758,366 - =
General reserve fund —REEES
Beginning of year F4) 30,724 23,382 - =
Transfer from retained profits* ERERE R 17,380 7,342 - =
End of year Fi8 48,104 30,724 - =
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37. RESERVES (continued)

Movements are: (continued)

37. f#fE (@)

ZET - ()

Consolidated Company
Re AT
2002 2001 2002 2001
—BE-f —ZTF —BECf —TT-F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THET THER T
Cumulative translation adjustments ZRESAE
Beginning of year F4) 6,499 700 - -
Translation adjustments ERLESR (2,286) 5,799 - =
End of year FIR 4,213 6,499 - =
Proposed dividends ERRE
Beginning of year ) 20,040 30,000 20,040 30,000
Proposed dividends BERE
- interim dividend —HHRS 20,040 10,010 20,040 10,010
—final dividend —RERE 20,040 20,040 20,040 20,040
Payment of dividends SERRE (40,080) (40,010) (40,080) (40,010)
End of year Fi8 20,040 20,040 20,040 20,040
Total S 2,699,424 2,153,684 645,497 641,617
Note — Bt 3 —

As stipulated by regulations in mainland China, the Company’s
subsidiaries established and operated in mainland China are required
to appropriate a portion of their after-tax profit (after offsetting prior
year losses) to the general reserve fund and enterprise expansion fund,
at rates determined by their respective boards of directors. The general
reserve fund can be utilised to offset prior year losses or be utilised for
the issuance of bonus shares, whilst the enterprise expansion fund
can be utilised for the development of business operations. During the
year ended 31st December 2002, the boards of directors of the
Company’s subsidiaries in mainland China appropriated approximately
HK$17,380,000 (2001: HK$7,342,000) to the general reserve fund and
determined not to make any appropriation to the enterprise expansion
fund.
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38. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 38. MAEBRERERMTE

STATEMENT

(@) BRBABFHHRCEELEZRERA

(a) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to net cash inflow/

(outflow) generated from operations is as follows: M) BREBHMOT :
2002 2001
—EE-F T —F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FHET
Profit before taxation BBt B A 510,864 215,880
Interest income FLEMA (2,632) (4,288)
Interest expense FMEZ 12,644 5,938
Share of loss of associates o {REE &N A E51E 3,033 =
Share of profit of a jointly controlled entity — 2>{k 3t [B 122 1 2 2% F (91,586) (12,584)
Depreciation of properties and equipment  #1% k& &1 &E 5,820 3,355
Loss on disposal of properties and HEMERFZEZ
equipment =] 74 38
Amortisation of goodwill B3] 2,425 1,647
Amortisation of rights to receive rental LK R 5
income 1,103 -
Provision for amount due from e — B = A A
an associate IR 6,000 =
Write-off of cost of properties WEE I FE R A 5,355 =
Loss on investment in securities BB EE 1,405 2,591
Increase in properties for sale A& 2 WL N (1,566,026) (597,360)
Decrease in accounts receivable FEBR FOR 156,122 29,636
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TERIFIE ~ R R H A
deposits and other current assets TEVEER D, () 39,024 (82,399)
Increase in accounts payable FETBRFRIZ AN 566,697 4,833
Increase in land premium payable FEAS 30 FE S 3G N 122,258 153,302
Increase in deferred income JEIEUL ALE AN 207,646 198,972
Increase in accruals and other payables — YE1ZE R & E fth fE 1~f
FIELEAN 41,389 87,624
Decrease in mainland China business FERT B 5
tax payable Ve (6,144) (24,713)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) generated REEEZRE
from operations WA CR) F88 15,471 (17,528)
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38. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Analysis of changes in financing is as follows:

(b) FRAFEZBESBIMMT !

38. FEREREBRMEE @)

Due o Due o
Share capital Due to ajointly ultimate
andshare  Short-tem  Long-term Dueto related  controlled holding Minority
premium  bankloans  bank loans directors  companies entity  company interests
Efi-& et
RAR ik &8 Eff  ERBE  HESH  BAER L2 |
RtEE  BAER B8R EERE O N9RE ERRE Q9RE REER
HKS'000 HK§ 000 HKS'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000
TR TR Tkn T Thn T TR T
As at 1st January 2001 WZFE-F 717,692 550,936 361,307 3,024 57430 - - 166,615
—A-H
Issue of shares upon exercise R PRRER
of share options i) 1,360 - - - - - - -
Share issue expenses R OE GG () - - - - - - -
New loans/acvances R/ B3 - 63009 5887T4 4 2,120 87,189 20,000 -
Repaymens e - [2)  (323166) (1.507) (0.341) - - -
Capital contrbutions fromminorty ~ HEAFAERE
shareholders of subsiciares EXER - - - - - - - 19,171
Share of proft by minority HEAA EHE
shareholders of subsiciaries BlE 87 - - - - - - - 4024
As at 31st December 2001 WZFE-F 719,049 751,483 646,915 1562 76,209 87,189 20,000 179810
+=A=1-A
Newloang/acvances EER/ 85 - 1108633 71547 12630 5439 314468 - -
Repayments [EE5E - (751,483)  (164,037) ) (27,244) (189,085 - -
Captal contrboutions fromminorty ~ HEARDERE
shareholders of subsiciares AAER - - - - - - - 65,945
Share of profit by minorty HEAR gk
shareholders of subsicries Bl 28N - - - - - - - 51,071
As at 315t December 2002 WFE2E 719049 1108633 1,198,125 14,188 303,314 212,567 20,000 297,726
+ZA=1-H
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38. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 38. MERERERMETE @
CASH FLOWS (continued)
(c) Cash and cash equivalents: (c) REeRARLEEY:
Cash and cash equivalents represent cash and other ReMASEBYER S22 _F1+=
bank deposits amounting to approximately A=+—BA##%257,321,000/4 7T
HK$257,321,000 (2001: HK$363,873,000) as at 31st —EFZT—4F : 363,873,000/ 7T) 2
December 2002. & RHEAMIRITFR ©
39. SEGMENT INFORMATION 39. 7 EER
The Group operates predominantly in mainland China and REBEEENPRIARELE = [EZBH1E
in three business segments — property development, BIZEER - MERERYEEE °

property investment and property management.
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39. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

9. 7 AR (&)

Analysis of the Group’s results by business segment is as REBEEBHBRESHEESITOT
follows:
Property Property Property
development investment  management Eliminations Total
NERE NERE NEER i &t
2002 2002 2002 2002 2002
k-3 k- k3 > k3 k>3 k> k3
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
T T Fin TEn TEn
Turnover g5
External HRA 2,073,847 18,414 34,528 - 2,126,789
Inter-segment REAEEHE - - 2,250 (2,250) -
Total turnover BELR 2,073,847 18,414 36,778 (2,250) 2,126,789
Profit attributable to shareholders RRELRR
Segment resuts NERE 414,541 16,573 1,209 432,323
Other revenue A 2,632
Proft from operations mER A 434,955
Share of loss of associates MBERABE (3,033) - - (3,033)
Share of profit of a joinly controled enty ~ AME—EARIEHEE AT 91,586 - - 91,586
Finance costs B (12,644)
Profit before taxation BE AR 510,864
Taxation k] (229811)
Proft after taxation Rk RR 281,053
Minorty interests PeREER (51,971)
Profit attibutable to shareholders TREEER 229,082
Assets BE
Segment assets NEEE 4,855,436 3,772,149 33,246 8,660,831
Investment in associates REEAARE 79 - - 9
Investment in a ointly controlled entity R-HLRBHER KA 85,412 - - 85,412
8,747,022
Liabilities 8
Segment liabilies HEBRE 4,200,864 1,385,740 63,008 5,649,672
Capital expenditure 0N 13816 881,045 1471 897,232
Depreciation e 5,328 - 492 5820
Amortisation s 2425 1,103 - 3,528
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39. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 39. 7 EER (&)
Property Property Property
development investment management Eliminations Total
NERR NERE NEER sk ait
2001 2001 2001 2001 2001
“2%-F “2%-F “2%-F “25-F “2%-F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Th ThT ThT ThT Th
Turnover E¥B
External IR 1,143,381 2,8% 24,504 - 1170871
Inter-segment RS - - 1490 (1,490) =
Total tumover he%E 1,143,381 2,806 26,084 (1,490) 1,170,871
Profit attributable to shareholders RRELER
Segment resutts pLES 211,005 2,606 (8,665) 204,946
Other revenue EtpA 4288
Proft from operations memT 209,234
Share of profitof a joinly controled enty ~ AE—EXFEEHEEET 12,584 - - 12,584
Finance costs BRI (5,988 )
Profit hefore taxation bl 215,880
Taxation b 90,891)
Profit after taxation BitkaR 124,989
Minorty interests SERRER (4,024)
Profit atirioutable to shareholders REEERT 120965
Assets BE
Segment assets HEAE 3,121,324 2,426,040 37,421 5,585,685
Investment in associates RBEAARE 2413 - - 2413
Investment in a jointly controlled entity R—ELREHEE RE 38431 - - 38431
5,626,529
Liabilities BR
Segment liabilities Bl 2,693,540 553,416 45,879 3,192,836
Capital expenditure EXEx 10513 430873 804 442,280
Depreciation ik 3,020 - 3% 3,355
Amortisation ] 1,647 - - 1,647
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39. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 39. 7 EER (&)
No segment information by location of assets is presented ERAEE A EEHMMNFRARE - #3F
as substantially all of the Group’s assets are located in IR EEMTHESDERER - MERASE
mainland China. No analysis of turnover by location of B 2 REMD PRI AR BIRRE » Ul iR
customers is presented as substantially all of the Group’s B TR & X IT O o

customers are located in mainland China.

40. COMMITMENTS 40. &IE
(a) Capital commitments (a) BEAREE
The Group had the following capital commitments in REBRPAR B NEHE B R EERK
respect of property construction costs, which have not R ERAPENT -

been provided in the accounts:

Consolidated Company
=8 AH

2002 2001 2002 2001

b 2 —BEF k2 “ETF

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000

TERT AT TERT THT
Property development costs MEBRKAR

- Authorised and contracted for —EREREFY 3,878,974 2,071,648 - -

- Authorised but not contracted for ~ —E B RE4 8,787,350 7,894,023 = =

Capital contribution to a jointly R—RFEEGEE

controlled entity ZERER

- Authorised and contracted for —BEEREFH 257,857 257 857 = =

12,924,181 10,223,528 - =
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40. COMMITMENTS (continued) 40. I (&)

(b) Operating lease commitments

The Group has operating lease commitments in respect
of premises under various non-cancellable operating
lease agreements extending to April 2006 of
approximately HK$11,910,000 (2001:
HK$14,345,000). The commitments payable under
these agreements are analysed as follows:

(b)

RERENEE

AREBRLZHHRE ST EFNAAF
RS 2 TS EROHEE
ﬁimmMﬁwﬁﬁmﬁﬂgmomﬁ
T(ZEE : 14,345,000/87T) °
%Tﬁ%a%‘l—/,\HZEK#" TR

2002 2001
—EECF T —F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET T
Amounts payable THHARZER 2 B
— within one year ——FR 3,582 3,041
— within two to five years ——ZRFNA 8,328 11,304
11,910 14,345
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41. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Contingent liabilities not provided for in the accounts are:

41. FREE

WEN R B FEHB BN ARENT

Consolidated Company
we A
2002 2001 2002 2001
b 3 k2 —TT-F b S k2 “TE-F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TET THT TiET FET
Guarantees given to banks for mortgage REEREENE
facilities granted to the buyers of the 2 ER RS
Group’s properties BERMmARITEL
LR 1,322,859 287,760 - -
Guarantees given to banks for bank BRITERRBEIT
loans of: fELFER :
- an associate (see Note 3(e)) ——FlE AR
(B3 9,186 10,085 - -
- a jointly controlled entity (see Note 3(e)) -—RAREHER
(B3 84,906 56,604 - -
- related companies (see Note 3(e)) ~BELF
(B3 106,604 18,868 - -
- subsidiaries —HBAR - = 235,849 =
1,523,555 373,267 235,849 -
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42. PENSION SCHEMES

Since 1st December 2000, the Group has arranged for its
Hong Kong employees to join the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”), a defined contribution scheme
managed by an independent trustee. Under the MPF
scheme, each of the Group (the employer) and its employees
make monthly contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees’ earnings as defined under the Mandatory
Provident Fund legislation. The monthly contributions of each
of the employer and employees are subject to a cap of

HK$1,000 and thereafter contributions are voluntary.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in mainland China,
the Group contributes to state-sponsored retirement plans
for its employees in mainland China. The Group’s employees
make monthly contributions to the plans at approximately
7% of relevant income (comprising salaries, allowances and
bonus), while the Group contributes approximately 18% of
such income, and has no further obligations for the actual
payment of pensions beyond the contributions. The state-
sponsored retirement plans are responsible for the entire
pension obligations payable to the retired employees.

During the year ended 31st December 2002, the aggregate
amount of the employer contributions made by the Group
amounted to approximately HK$6,540,000 (2001:
HK$1,375,000) (see Note 7).
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42. RIREFHE

B_ZTTTHF+_A—Hit AEEDEH
BEEELH2E—HBE (B EEAE
B ERBRERETE - Bt AEE R
([BESTE) - BERBESTE - A5H
(B*) REEE S BERARTIMAEE A
FTRE & Bk EBRA Z5% M &aTEl1E
BARK - BEXREBFIEZEARKER
% A1,00087T © M HM 00078 7T LATR 2 4
FABEREEE -

IR B RRE 2 ARRTE - ANRERERT
BIARE 2 B B & E— (A BERE B 2 RIKGH
g - ARERESAREABRA (BHEH
& RBERIEAD) KT %HEFEEL R - &
SEAIZZFWALI8%IEL M - BRiEL
RS - REEW EE D HBERRIRS R
BT - BREZRUFTE B EXRINE
BZ2HRARE -

HE-_ZZ-_F+-A=t+—HIEE ' K
EEIEH 2B £ H54956,540,0008 7T (=
TE—4F : 1,375,000/ 7T) (RMIE7) o
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126 Notes to the Accounts

8RB M &
43. BANKING FACILITIES 43. SRITRLE

As at 31st December 2002, the Group had banking facilities RZZEZEZF+ZA=1+—0 ~EBEZIE

of approximately HK$2,306,758,000 (2001: TREREIRITERRRBARITER &

HK$1,398,398,000) for short-term and long-term bank S EE%)52,306,758,000/8 T (ZTEE—F -

loans, which were fully utilised. These facilities were secured 1,398,398,000/#7T) - ANEBEBAMAR

by: TRLE o WERE B NISIBRER -

(@) the Group’s investment properties with an aggregate (a) AEEREAEALI1,100,899,000/4 7T
carrying amount of approximately HK$1,100,899,000 (ZZZ—1F : 973,466,000/ 70) 2 1%
(2001: HK$973,466,000) (see Note 15); B (RMEE15)

(b) the Group’s properties under development for long-term (b) ANEBE%70,112,000F T (ZFTZ—
investment of approximately HK$70,112,000 (2001: % : 67,713,000 7T) 2 FHERHIZE
HK$67,713,000) (see Note 17); ZERPYE (RMFE17) -

(©) the Group’s land pending development of approximately (0) ANEE ZF3E T 1#4982,995,000/8 7T
HK$82,995,000 (2001: HK$80,803,000) (see Note 18); (ZZZT—% : 80,803,000/87T) (RH

#18)

(d) the Group’s properties under development for sale of o XEEZAHEECBERPYED
approximately HK$237,026,000 (2001: 237,026,000 T (=T —4F :
HK$222,798,000) (see Note 24); 222,798,000/ 7T) (RMizt24) :

(e) the Group’s completed properties for sale of ) AEEZAHEE 2B EKRIEN
approximately HK$203,299,000 (2001: 203,299,000 T (ZEF—4F :
HK$223,754,000) (see Note 25); and 223,754,000/ 7T) (RK1EE25) « &

() the Group’s bank deposits of approximately (f) ANEEZHRITFHE232,081,000% 7T
HK$232,081,000 (2001: HK$85,221,000) (see Note (ZZZ—%F : 85,221,000 7T) (RLHKT
29). #29) o

In addition, the Group is required to comply with certain AN - NREEBEE TR TIRITER T2

financial covenants under certain bank borrowings. BTHHBRYL -

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED 44 £ & % @ 47 &2 4]
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SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On 20th February 2003, the Group entered into agreements
to acquire the entire interest in a property development
project in Shanghai, mainland China for an aggregate
amount of approximately HK$402,752,000, including
purchase consideration, capital contribution and certain

payments in connection with such investment.
ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

The Directors consider Sounda Properties Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, to be its
ultimate holding company.

APPROVAL OF ACCOUNTS

The accounts were approved by the board of directors on
14th April 2003.

44,

45.

46.

Notes to the Accounts

ik B MY &E

HEHRSBE

R-ZEZT=F_A—+A  AEET %
LAKEER R B B — % 3% R 18 B K23
= P AEERX402,752,00058 7T  BIEF
B ENEERE ERERARETH

=+
e
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Summary of Consolidated Financial Information

REMBENBE

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNTS #Z&iaxE &

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002
—AAN\E  —AANWE —ETTF  —TT-F | —BBCF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET T TAT FExT
Turnover e 1,308,332 1,328,513 1,198,378 1,170,871 2,126,789
Cost of sales HERA (738,224) (768,515) (829,788) (782,664)  (1,347,736)
Gross profit EF 565,108 559,998 368,590 388,207 779,053
Other revenue HeA 19,183 16,593 7,939 4,288 2,632
Selling and marketing HE RS
expenses HEEHR (70,468) (74,268) (91,353) (126,181) (227,760)
General and administrative ~ —#& R 1T
expenses =g (23,705) (26,305) (44,095) (57,080) (118,970)
Profit from operations SREET 490,118 476,018 241,081 209,234 434,955
Share of loss SaK[aY: kN
of associates =gt - - - - (3,033)
Share of profit of a jointly i 2[R
controlled entity EEEF - - = 12,584 91,586
Finance costs IR IDIN (4,922) (686) (698) (5,938) (12,644)
Profit before taxation BT A 485,196 475,332 240,383 215,880 510,864
Taxation 18 (158,138) (162,857) (86,195) (90,891) (229,811)
Profit after taxation B 18 F 327,058 312,475 154,188 124,989 281,053
Minority interests DERR e (16,380) (23,564) 6,676 (4,024) (51,971)
Profit attributable to %R (L
shareholders gl 310,678 288,911 160,864 120,965 229,082
Dividends 8\ 120,000 80,000 40,000 30,050 40,080

HoOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Summary of Consolidated Financial Information

REMBEERBE
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS #&aEEA /R
1998 1999 2000 2001 2002
—“NANE  —hANE ZETTFE —TT-F CZBE-F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TEx THT T THET TER
Non-current assets FrRBEE
Properties and equipment MERSAE 12,237 13,235 14,493 22,507 31,900
Investment properties REWE 364,000 865,000 1,673,000 1,710,000 2,625,600
Rights to receive A
rental income - - - - 48,524
Properties under development for ~ HHEREIRE 2
long-term investment and land BEANER
pending development FERLH 472,703 675,714 530,741 805,996 1,458,007
Investment in iN =N
associates ZIRE 5,868 6,625 7,503 2,413 779
Investment in a jointly R — R RIS
controlled entity ERIRE - 29,961 30,000 38,431 85,412
Goodwil g - - - 6,587 6,108
Due from a director el — R EEHIE - - = 1,000 =
Total non-current assets FEmBEERE 854,808 1,590,535 2,255,737 2,586,934 = 4,256,330
Current assets REEE
Properties under development AHHEZ
for sale BRAYE 660,237 782,876 632,273 1,751,799 2,690,666
Completed properties for sale ARHEZEEK
ES 15,890 316,799 719,429 369,536 1,066,227
Accounts receivable FEUBR TR 448,603 465,664 306,803 277,167 121,045
Prepayments, deposits and BRHE  Ze Rk
other current assets HEinsEE 22,942 20,622 74,385 156,784 117,760
Investment in securities EHEE - - 6,823 4,232 2,827
Due from related companies fENREEE D R IR 53,738 5,997 406 5,983 2,765
Due from a jointly controlled entity ~— JEU — & £ RIi% 66,074 130,880 157,339 = -
ERNE
Cash and bank deposits ReRBT8ET 444,169 224,789 330,363 474,004 489,402
Total current assets MEEERE 1,711,653 1,947,627 2,227,821 3,039,595 = 4,490,692
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Summary of Consolidated Financial Information

REMBERBE

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (continued) %2 & EES B X ()

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002
“WN\E —AAE ZEEEF 0 —2E-F  ZEECE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT T FHT T TiEgn
Current liabilities RBaE
Short-term bank loans BHRTER (165,421) (324,113) (550,936) (751,483)  (1,108,633)
Long-term bank loans, RERTER
current portion FEE R - - (228,223) (164,283) (375,527)
Accounts payable JERTERR (164,077) (183,162) (143,011) (147,844) (714,541)
Land premium payable, R LRS-
current portion ki) (204,662) (289,985) (143,332) (172,907) (346,252)
Deferred income, current portion ~ IEFEUA » BB RS () - - - (140,083) (349,259)
Accruals and other payables BREARAMERNTIA (147,213) (141,354) (158,384) (246,008) (287,397)
Due to directors ENEZENE (6,631) (4,526) (3,024) (1,562) (4,188)
Due to related companies ER B ARIIER (75,903) (53,193) (57,430) (76,209) (303,314)
Due to a jointly controlled entity EN—RLREHNEBHE - - - (87,189) (212,567)
Due to ultimate holding company e RAERR A RIFA - - - (20,000) -
Taxation payable JERFIIR (17,677) (50,396) (65,306) (45,357) (172,303)
Total current liabilties TEAESE (781,584)  (1,046,729)  (1,349,646)  (1,852,925)  (3,873,981)
Net current assets mBEEFE 930,069 900,898 878,175 1,186,670 616,711
Total assets less current liabiiies ~ BEERRH AR 1,784,877 2,491,433 3,133,912 3,773,604 4,873,041
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Summary of Consolidated Financial Information

RENKERBE
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (continued) %28 EE& &% ()
1998 1999 2000 2001 2002
—NWNANE —NWANE “TTTF “TT-F —EZ-F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT TER
Non-current liabilities FrRBEE
Long-term bank loans, RABRTER
non-current portion ElFShl) - (224,298) (153,084) (482,632) (822,598)
Land premium payable, ERLiiLES -
non-current portion FERHSMH (98,970) = (2,698) (126,425) (75,338)
Due to a director ER—2ESHER - - - - (10,000)
Due to ultimate holding JERTER 2R
company ARFE - - - - (20,000)
Deferred income, EEWA
non-current portion EiSEi) - - - (58,889) (57,359)
Deferred taxation EIEHE (300,227) (481,779) (666,266) (671,964) (790,396)
Total non-current liabilities FnBBELE (399,197) (706,077) (822,048) (1,339,910) (1,775,691)
Minority interests DERERES (38,402) (55,726) (156,615) (179,810) (297,726)
Net assets BEFE 1,347,278 1,729,630 2,155,249 2,253,884 2,799,624
Represented by~ R&K-
Share capital B 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,200 100,200
Reserves &t 1,247,278 1,629,630 2,055,249 2,153,684 2,699,424
Shareholders’ equity RS 1,347,278 1,729,630 2,155,249 2,253,884 2,799,624
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

BRREFAREE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting
of Hopson Development Holdings Limited (the “Company”) will
be held at Chater Room I, Function Room Level, B1, The Ritz-
Carlton, 3 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong on Monday,
19th May, 2003 at 9:30 a.m. for the following purposes:

1. To receive and consider the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries and the
reports of the directors and auditors for the year ended 31st
December, 2002.

2. To re-elect retiring directors and to authorize the board of
directors to fix the directors’ remuneration.

3. Todeclare afinal dividend for the year ended 31st December,
2002.

4. To re-appoint auditors and to authorize the board of directors
to fix their remuneration.

5. As special business to consider and, if thought fit, pass
with or without modifications, the following resolutions as
Ordinary Resolutions:

A. “THAT:

(@) subject to paragraph (c), the exercise by the directors
of the Company during the Relevant Period of all the
powers of the Company to allot, issue and deal with
additional shares in the capital of the Company or
securities convertible into such shares or warrants or
similar rights to subscribe for any shares in the Company
and to make or grant offers, agreements and options
which might require the exercise of such power be and
is hereby generally and unconditionally approved;

(b) the approval in paragraph (a) shall authorize the directors
of the Company during the Relevant Period to make or
grant offers, agreements and options which would or
might require the exercise of such power after the end
of the Relevant Period;

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED 44 £ & % @ 47 &2 4]
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(©

the aggregate nominal amount of share capital allotted
or agreed conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted
(whether pursuant to an option or otherwise) by the
directors of the Company pursuant to the approval in
paragraph (a), otherwise than pursuant to the shares
of the Company issued as a result of a Rights Issue (as
hereinafter defined) or pursuant to the exercise of
options under the Share Option Scheme or similar
arrangement, or any scrip dividend or similar
arrangement providing for the allotment of shares of
the Company in lieu of the whole or part of the dividend
on the shares of the Company in accordance with the
Company’s Bye-laws, shall not exceed 20 per cent of
the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of
the Company in issue as at the date of passing of this
Resolution and the said approval shall be limited
accordingly; and

for the purposes of this Resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the date of
passing of this Resolution until whichever is the earliest
of:

()  the conclusion of the next annual general meeting
of the Company;

(i) the expiration of the period within which the next
annual general meeting of the Company is required
by the Bye-laws of the Company or any applicable
laws of Bermuda to be held; or

(i) revocation or variation of the authority given under
this Resolution by ordinary resolution of the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

BRRBERSEES

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares open for a
period fixed by the directors of the Company to holders
of shares of the Company on the register on a fixed
record date in proportion to their holdings of such shares
(subject to such exclusions or other arrangements as
the directors of the Company may deem necessary or
expedient in relation to fractional entitlerents or having
regard to any restrictions or obligations under the laws
of, or the requirements of, any recognized regulatory
body or any stock exchange in any territory outside
Hong Kong).”

B. “THAT:

@)

subject to paragraph (b), the exercise by the directors
of the Company during the Relevant Period of all the
powers of the Company to repurchase its own shares
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) or on any other stock exchange on
which the securities of the Company may be listed and
recognized by the Securities and Futures Commission
and the Stock Exchange for this purpose, subject to
and in accordance with all applicable laws and
requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange or of any other stock
exchange on which the securities of the Company may
be listed as amended from time to time, be and is hereby
generally and unconditionally approved;

the aggregate nominal amount of shares of the
Company to be repurchased by the Company pursuant
to the approval mentioned in paragraph (a) during the
Relevant Period shall not exceed 10 per cent of the
aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the
Company in issue on the date of passing of this
Resolution and the said approval shall be limited
accordingly; and

the expression “Relevant Period” shall for the purposes
of this Resolution have the same meaning as assigned
to it under Ordinary Resolution 5.A.(d) of this notice.”
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“THAT conditional upon Resolutions 5.A. and 5.B. above
being passed, the aggregate nominal amount of shares in
the capital of the Company which are repurchased by the
Company under the authority granted to the directors as
mentioned in Resolution 5.B. above shall be added to the
aggregate nominal amount of share capital that may be
allotted or agreed conditionally or unconditionally to be
allotted by the directors of the Company pursuant to
Resolution 5.A. provided that the amount of share capital
repurchased by the Company shall not exceed 10 per cent
of the total nominal amount of the share capital of the
Company in issue on the date of this Resolution.”

By Order of the Board

Mok Wai Kun, Barbara
Secretary

14th April, 2003, Hong Kong

Principal office:

19th Floor, Wyndham Place
40-44 Wyndham Street
Central

Hong Kong
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BRRBEXEES

Notes:

A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting convened by the above
notice is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend and vote in his
stead. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

To be valid, this form of proxy, together with the power of attorney or other
authority (if any) under which it is signed or a notarially certified copy of that
power of attorney or other authority, must be deposited at the principal office
of the Company at 19th Floor, Wyndham Place, 40-44 Wyndham Street,
Central, Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for
holding the said meeting.

A form of proxy for the meeting will be enclosed with the annual report.

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 13th
May, 2003 to Monday, 19th May, 20083, both days inclusive, during which
period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to qualify for the final
dividend to be approved at the meeting and the right to attend and vote at
the meeting, all transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s Share Registrars in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:00
p.m. on Monday, 12th May, 2003.

With reference to the Ordinary Resolutions sought in items 5.A. and 5.B. of
this notice, the directors wish to state that they have no immediate plans to
issue any new shares or to repurchase any existing shares of the Company.
The explanatory statement required by the Listing Rules of the Stock
Exchange in connection with the repurchase mandate will be despatched to
shareholders together with the annual report.
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Principal Office

19th Floor, Wyndham Place
40-44 Wyndham Street
Central

Hong Kong

Guangzhou Representative Office
29th Floor, Zhujiang Planning Building
Jianshe Da Ma Lu

Dongshan District

Guangzhou

Beijing Representative Office
3rd Floor, Dawang Hotel

23 Dawang Road West
Chaoyang District

Beijing

Shanghai Representative Office

18th Floor, Guangdong Development Bank Building

555 Xujia Hui Road
Shanghai

Tianjin Representative Office
No.14 Dongchengnan Road,
Baodi District,

Tianjin

Shenzhen Representative Office
21st Floor, Jiangsu Tower

Yitian Road

Futian District

Shenzhen
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